
 

Housing Committee Agenda Published: 05 Sep 2022 
13 September 2022  

The cost of printing this doc pack: 
The carbon cost of producing this doc pack: 

The cost of posting this doc pack: 

Approx. £6.30 
Approx.  4.2 tonnes 
Approx. £1.21 

 

05 September 2022 
 

HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of the Housing Committee will be held on TUESDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2022 in 
the Council Chamber, Ebley Mill, Ebley Wharf, Stroud at 7.00 pm 

 
Kathy O’Leary 

Chief Executive 
 

Please Note: The meeting is being held in the Council Chamber at Stroud District Council 
and will be streamed live on the Council’s YouTube Channel. A recording of the meeting 
will be published onto the Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be recorded 
except where there are confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in 
the absence of press and public. 
 

If you wish to attend this meeting, please contact democratic.services@stroud.gov.uk  
This is to ensure adequate seating is available in the Council Chamber. 

 
A G E N D A 

  
1.   APOLOGIES  

To receive apologies of absence. 
  

2.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
To receive declarations of interest. 
  

3.   MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8) 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2022. 
  

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
The Chair of the Committee will answer questions from members of the public 
submitted in accordance with the Council’s procedures.  
  

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT OF QUESTIONS 
Noon on Wednesday, 7 September 2022 

  
Questions must be submitted to the Chief Executive, Democratic Services,  

Ebley Mill, Ebley Wharf, Stroud and can be sent by email to 
democratic.services@stroud.gov.uk  

  
  
  
  

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCeH_AmF0s-TShcYlM8Stweg
https://www.stroud.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@stroud.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@stroud.gov.uk


Housing Committee  Agenda Published: Monday, 5 September 2022 
13 September 2022  
 

5.   APPOINTMENT OF PERFORMANCE MONITOR  
To appoint an additional performance monitor for civic year 2022-2023. 
  

6.   INFORMATION SHEETS    
 (a)   Update on Housing Management System Procurement (Pages 9 - 10) 

  
7.   PLAY AREA CONSULTATION AND DEVELOPMENT ACTION PLAN 

RECOMMENDATIONS (Pages 11 - 112) 
To brief members of Housing Committee on the Play Area and Development 
Action Plans Progress. 
  

8.   BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2022/23 QUARTER 1 (Pages 113 - 120) 
To present the 2022/23 forecast outturn position against the General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue budgets and Capital Programme that 
the Committee is responsible for, in order to give an expectation of possible 
variances against budget. 
  

9.   PROGRESS UPDATE ON KEY ACTION PLANS (CLEANER ESTATES & 
SERVICE STANDARDS AND TENANT ENGAGEMENT) (Verbal Report) 
To receive a verbal update. 
  

10.   MEMBER / OFFICER REPORTS    
 (a)   Performance Monitoring Q1 (Pages 121 - 134)  
 (b)   Tenant Representatives   
 (c)   Retrofit / Carbon Reduction Task and Finish Group (Pages 135 - 138) 

  
11.   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 139 - 140) 

To consider the work programme. 
  

12.   MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  
See Agenda Item 4 for deadlines for submission. 
 

Members of Housing Committee 
 
Councillor Mattie Ross (Chair) Councillor Lucas Schoemaker (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Paula Baker 
Councillor Laurie Davies 
Councillor Katrina Davis 
Councillor Colin Fryer 
Councillor Lindsey Green 
 

Councillor Nicholas Housden 
Councillor Steve Hynd 
Councillor Christopher Jockel 
Councillor Jenny Miles 
Councillor Loraine Patrick 
 

Tenant Representatives 
 

Becky Adams Mike Ritcher 
 



 
2022/23 

 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 

05 July 2022 
 

7.00 - 8.41 pm 
 

Council Chamber 
 

Minutes 
Membership 
Councillor Mattie Ross (Chair) Councillor Lucas Schoemaker (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Paula Baker 
Councillor Katrina Davis 
Councillor Colin Fryer 
Councillor Lindsey Green 

Councillor Nicholas Housden 
Councillor Steve Hynd 
Councillor Jenny Miles 
Councillor Loraine Patrick 

Councillor Laurie Davies * Councillor Christopher Jockel * 
*= Absent  
 
Officers in Attendance 
Strategic Director of Communities 
Head of Service Counter Fraud and 
Enforcement Unit 
Head of Strategic Housing Services 
(Interim) 
Operations Manager 

Senior Housing Strategy & Enabling Officer 
Housing Manager 
Compliance and Assurance Manager 
Housing Advice Officer 
Democracy & Information Governance 
Officer 

 
Tenant Representatives 
Becky Adams Mike Richter 
 
HC.001 Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Davies and Jockel. 
 
HC.002 Declaration of Interests  
 
There were none. 
 
HC.003 Minutes  
 
Councillor Schoemaker raised a question regarding page 4 where it referenced an 
overspend of income. It was confirmed that it meant that there was extra income.  
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 
2022/23 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

RESOLVED That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 April 2022 were approved as 
a correct record. 

 
HC.004 Public Question Time  
 
There were none. 
 
HC.005 Final Report Out of Hours (OOH) Action Plan  
 
The Strategic Director of Communities introduced the report and drew the Committees 
attention to appendix A which showed the corrective action plan. This was divided into 4 
parts which consisted of: 
• Part 1 - Working procedures and roles and responsibilities needed to be refreshed. 

There was a need for an updated procedure manual. 
• Part 2 – Contract and risk management. Excelsis had been updated to reflect any 

high-level risk.  
• Part 3 – Insourcing. 
• Part 4 – Performance and reporting.  
  
Councillor Housden questioned the 85% target of answered calls on page 37 of the 
reports pack, which had been downgraded from the original target due to being 
unachievable. He noted that Stroud District Council (SDC) had been achieving a figure of 
85.5% which meant that between 30 - 40 calls were going unanswered a month. The 
Strategic Director of Resources explained that they were working very hard in a difficult 
environment to bring those figures back up.  
  
It was confirmed that there was a separate column on page 37 that showed the number 
of calls that were cancelled by the caller.  
  
The Strategic Director of Resources gave the following responses to questions asked 
regarding page 37 of the document pack: 
• The longest wait figure found in the table was an average of the wait times 

experienced across the reporting month.  
• It was agreed to get back to Councillor Green with the reasons for the average idle 

time and the average hold time containing no data.  
• It was agreed to get back to Councillor Housden with the target percentage of calls 

answered under the previous contract.  
  
Councillor Hynd proposed and Councillor Baker seconded.  
  
Councillor Baker and Councillor Miles commended the report. 
  
Mr Ritcher, tenant representative, raised concerns that the figures reported were during 
months with minimal emergencies. 
  
Councillor Housden expressed further concerns regarding the 15% of calls that go 
unanswered every month. 
  
Councillor Schoemaker stated that it was too early to judge the performance of the 
contractor. If the figures remained at the same level after a 6-month period then it would 
need to be investigated further but currently there was a marked improvement month by 
month.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



 
2022/23 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

Councillors Green and Hynd echoed Councillor Schoemakers comments. 
 
After being put to a vote, the Motion was carried unanimously. 
  
RESOLVED To note the corrective actions already implemented. 
 
HC.006 Prosecution of Housing and Tenancy Fraud on Behalf of Social 

Housing  
 
The Head of Service, Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit (CFEU), introduced the report 
and explained that it was a shared service between 6 different councils including SDC. 
They assisted with Housing Fraud prevention as well as with the prosecution side for 
Social Housing providers and SDC.   
  
In response to Councillors questions the Head of Service CFEU gave the following 
responses: 
• All costs were billed to the Social Housing Providers, and they would always invoice 

any costs associated. 
• It was agreed to provide data outside of the meeting for the partnership including 

where a prosecution had taken place, the costs involved and to provide the updated 
loss avoidance costs and legal costs.  

  
The Housing Manager agreed to provide some internal examples of fraud investigations 
and the costs surrounding them. She further informed the Committee that they hadn’t had 
to take legal action yet but had taken back a few properties as a result of investigations.  
  
The Head of Service CFEU gave the following answers in response to questions: 
• The partnership was formed to widen the fraud investigations from benefit fraud to all 

departments within a council. Enforcement was difficult for some councils to fulfil 
therefore the partnership provided specialist skills in order to complete tasks when a 
council had a lack of knowledge or experience.  

• In every case they would look at the tenant and their situation to ascertain their 
involvement with the fraud. The team was extremely sensitive at managing 
safeguarding issues and worked with other departments to ensure a holistic 
approach to educate and support individuals where required.  

  
In response to Councillor Patrick, the Head of Service CFEU explained that the review of 
emergency gold and silver banded applicationswas to help identify people who had 
forgotten to update their circumstances as well as those who were misrepresenting 
themselves and being dishonest. 

  
In response to Mr Ritcher, tenant representative, the Head of Service CFEU confirmed 
that they were funded through the 6 partner Councils who paid for their services. 
  
Councillor Miles proposed and Councillor Fryer seconded. 
  
Councillor Baker commended the services provided by the CFEU.  
  
Councillor Green expressed her support for the report and stated that it would send out a 
good message to prevent people from committing fraud.  
  
After being put to a vote, the Motion was carried unanimously. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2022/23 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

RESOLVED To: 
a)  Note the content of the report; 
b) Endorse the use of appropriate enforcement powers and those 

powers set out in the Prevention of Social Housing Fraud Act 2013 
(POSHFA); and 

c) Support the prosecution (where appropriate) of housing and 
tenancy fraud offences committed in relation to properties owned 
by the Authority or Social Housing providers within the District. 

 
HC.007 Progress Update on Key Action Plans (Cleaner Estates and Service 

Standards)  
 
The Housing Manager provided a brief verbal update which included:  
• They were looking to identify a few areas to place closed skips around the district in 

order to save money and speed up the fly-tipping collection process. 
• They had procured art research to carry out the STAR survey which would be taking 

place in October.  
• As part of the Tenant Engagement Action Plan, the tenant representatives had now 

begun their mentoring and inductions which were delayed due to Covid.  
• The role for the Tenant Engagement Officer had been advertised. 
• 10 tenants had undertaken scrutiny training and would be scrutinising different 

council departments in the coming months.  
• They would be re-naming the Neighbourhood Management Officers to Housing 

Officers for simplicity. 
• They would be working with the Planned Maintenance Team to look ahead at the 

work that would be carried out in order to plan ahead for things like scaffolding.  
  
In response to questions regarding the closed skips the Housing Manager confirmed:  
• They would be placed in identified hot spots where fly-tipping was abundant.  
• The areas surrounding the skips would be closely monitored to ensure the problem 

hadn’t been moved elsewhere. 
• They were looking for a few locations to place a number of skips as part of a larger 

trial period for 3 months.  
• It was agreed to bring the figures for the cost of the skips used against the cost of fly-

ripping to the next committee meeting to see how much had been saved. 
 
HC.008 Appointment of Performance Monitors  
 
Lindsey Green and Trina Davis were re-appointed as performance monitors. 
 
HC.009 Member / Officer Reports  
 
a) Information Sheet - Rough Sleeper Initiatives  
 
The information sheet was circulated as part of the reports pack, prior to the meeting.  
 
It was agreed to get further information of all the provisions available within the district 
and circulate outside of the meeting. 
 
b) Tenant Representatives (verbal report)  
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 
2022/23 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

Mr Ritcher, tenant representative, explained that the tenants had been preparing for 
scrutiny panels. One of the areas they had identified to look into was the voids 
turnaround time and compare this to similar councils. They would also be looking at the 
state of the properties before they were let to tenants.  
 
Miss Adams, tenant representative, provided a brief update their induction where they 
had visited the Littlecombe site for a tour. 
 
c) Performance Monitoring  
 
Councillor Green introduced the report and explained that they had focused on a few key 
parts that they felt were the most important to the Housing Committee. If any Councillors 
wished to focus on something not on the list then they were open to suggestions.  
 
d) Retrofit / Carbon Reduction Task and Finish Group Update  
 
It was agreed to move this item to the next housing committee. 
 
e) Tenant Engagement and Empowerment Task and Finish Group Update  
 
Councillor Fryer gave a brief verbal update to the Committee which included: 
• The scrutiny panel was being set up for September. 
• 3 tenant engagement session were held at Gloucester cricket club where 16 new 

tenants expressed an interest in available roles. 
• Recruitment was going ahead for the new Tenant Engagement Officer  
• Planned to hold monthly sessions in the Stonehouse and Paganhill housing hubs. 
• TPAS housing conference was upcoming for staff and tenants. 
  
Councillor Miles queried the complaints process and enquired whether the council could 
work with an independent person in order to support tenants with any complaints they 
had. The Housing Manager confirmed that tenants were now able to write directly to the 
Ombudsman without first going through the council’s system. 
 
f) Housing Repairs and Voids Task and Finish Group Update  
 
Councillor Baker summarised the work that had been completed previously by the Task 
and Finish Group.  
  
The Operations Manager further updated the committee of the recent updates that the 
team had been working on which included: 
• Void figures had been reduced from 164 to around 50 properties.  
• There were some longer-term properties which still needed to be resolved.  
• There were concerns for recruitment due to the large movement from gas to 

renewables where there was a lack of knowledge and experience.  
• They were working with tenants to identify areas of overlapping responsibility where 

the tenants could do things to prevent damage and protect areas in the home.  
  
The Chair commended the figures and the hard work that had gone into reducing the 
number of void properties.  
  
In response to Councillor Green the Operations Manager confirmed: 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
2022/23 

Housing Committee Subject to approval at 
05 July 2022 next meeting 
 

• They were now engaged with a firm called Energy Angels who would work as an 
intermediary. They would support with changing metres, swapping ISO switches, and 
getting power back to properties where it had been shut off.  

• They were looking to get towards a normal level of operation after the backlog 
created by Covid. Once in this position they would be setting targets for each 
category of voids in order to better manage the performance. 

• The next round of apprenticeship requirement would be targeted towards renewable 
energy. 

 
HC.010 Work Programme  
 
The Chair informed the committee that the Older Persons Strategy and the Tenant 
Handbook reports had been moved from the December committee to the January 
committee in order to provide enough time in the December committee to consider the 
budgets. 
 
HC.011 Members' Questions  
 
There were none. 
 
The meeting closed at 8.41 pm 

Chair  
 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 
HOUSING COMMITTEE  

INFORMATION SHEET NO 1 
2 September 2022  

 

Sara J Weaver, Interim Tenancy Operations Manager 
Ext: 4183 

Email: sara.weaver@stroud.gov.uk  
 
 

PROCUREMENT OF HOUSING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM - UPDATE 
 
Housing Committee and Full Council approvals for the procurement of a new housing 
management system (HMS):- 
 
 Date & 
Committee 

Agenda Item Link to Meeting 
Documentation 

9 April 2019 
Housing 

Repairs & Maintenance Service 2020 Item 11 

8 December 2020 
Housing 

Council Housing – Housing Management 
System Transformation 

Item 8 
Business Case 

17 December 2020 
Full Council 

Council Housing – Housing Management 
System Transformation 

Item 6a 

 
Introduction 
Stroud District Council’s (SDC) landlord services use a number of technical administration 
systems to manage its property repair, capital investment, and tenant management/support 
activity. This includes work in relation to major works, contractor administration, budget 
reconciliation, and income (rents) management. 
 
The integration of information from these independent systems requires additional manual 
work and also significantly inhibits effective single users or tenant case management. To this 
extend it was no longer fit for purpose and some of the systems are reaching the end of their 
software support contracts or are being decommissioned by their suppliers.  
 
On this basis procuring a new, fit for purpose integrated system was identified as a priority.   
 
Process to procuring a new, integrated system 
Following collaboration with, and advice received, from Sarah Turner, Senior Policy and 
Governance Officer, and Jo Spain, Policy and Procurement Officer, a Procurement Plan, 
authorised by the Head of Housing Services, Kevin Topping, was submitted to the Senior 
Policy & Governance Officer.  This is a requirement prior to the commencement of any tender 
or quotation exercise with a total estimated value of £25,000 or more. 
 
Pre-market investigation showed that 14 suppliers were signed up to the Crown Commercial 
Services Data and Application Solutions (DAS) RM3821 Framework, Lot 2b; this framework 
is the one most commonly used to procure housing and repairs management software. 
Therefore, the decision was made to undertake a compliant procurement via the DAS 
framework for a new, fully cloud and browser-based HMS, to replace the existing on-premise 
solution.  
 
In December 2021, an Invitation to Tender (ITT) was placed onto the Proactis (procurement) 
Portal and two complete ITT responses were received from suitably qualified and capable 
tenderers at the end of January 2022. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6a

https://stroud.moderngov.co.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?CommitteeId=142&MeetingId=781&DF=09%2f04%2f2019&Ver=2
https://stroud.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Housing%20Committee/202012081900/Agenda/item-8-council-housing-housing-management-system-transformation.pdf
https://stroud.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Housing%20Committee/202012081900/Agenda/item-8-appendix-a-housing-management-system-business-case.pdf
https://stroud.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Council/202012171900/Agenda/item-6a-recommendation-from-housing-committee-housing-management-system-transformation.pdf


 
HOUSING COMMITTEE  

INFORMATION SHEET NO 1 
2 September 2022  

 

Sara J Weaver, Interim Tenancy Operations Manager 
Ext: 4183 

Email: sara.weaver@stroud.gov.uk  
 
 

In February/March 2022, the tenderers were invited to hold demonstrations, based on 
structured, detailed scenarios, closely aligned to the requested functionality.  Members of the 
Project Board, as well as staff from Tenant Services, Customer Services, and ICT, attended 
sessions which were all presented remotely due to Covid-19 restrictions.  
 
Subsequently, a number of formal clarifications were raised based on functionality, 
integrations, implementation plans, and undefined costs. Additional clarification sessions 
were then undertaken with tenderers around contactor, planned maintenance, and assets 
functionality. 
 
Due to the transformational features required of the new HMS, and in order to guard against 
being forced to accept an inferior solution, which might have been tendered at a low cost, a 
ratio of 75% quality and 25% cost was decided.  
 
The quality score was split between prescriptive technical requirements, scoring a maximum 
of 51%, with accompanying Method Statements, requiring detailed written responses, making 
up the remaining 24%.  Both cost and quality scoring were allowable within the Crown 
Commercial Services Data and Application Solutions (DAS) RM3821 Framework, Lot 2b, 
requirements.   
 
Costings and Budget 
The five-year contract sum was calculated as £904,199. This included the application 
software, implementation and data migration, integrations, training and project management, 
cloud/virtualised hosting, network services, and some transitional licence costs from the 
existing housing management solution modules. 
 
On 15 July 2022, Jon Coldridge, Principal Accountant, signed-off on the budget costings, 
advising that both the capital and revenue budgets were sufficient to cover the predicted 
spend.  This was further confirmed on 1 August 2022, following a clarification meeting 
between Lucy Clothier, Accountancy Manager; Adrian Blick, Interim Director of 
Transformation and Change & Head of IT; Jon Coldridge, Principal Accountant; Helen 
Stables, Senior Business Improvement & Systems Officer; and Sara Weaver. 
 
Recommendation 
It was recommended to the Strategic Director of Communities, Keith Gerrard, and the Project 
Board, that we communicate to NEC Housing our intention to award, subject to contract. 
Approval was given on 17 August 2022. 
 
Contract Negotiation 
After a 10-day standstill period, we have entered contract negotiation and finalisation. This is 
being managed by Chris Reynolds, Fit for the Future Programme Manager; Adrian Blick; 
Yvonne Abbott, Senior Legal Assistant at One Legal; Helen Stables, and Sara Weaver 
 
Mobilisation 
Phase 1 – project initiation to include Project Board and Team meetings and acceptance of 
the Project Initiation Document (PID) 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6a



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 7 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

STROUD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

Report Title PLAY AREA CONSULTATION AND DEVELOPMENT ACTION 
PLAN RECOMMENDATIONS 

Purpose of Report To brief members of Housing Committee on the Play Area and 
Development Action Plans Progress. 

Decision(s) The Committee RESOLVES to recommend to Community 
Services and Licensing Committee that it approve the 
recommendations for investment as identified. 

Consultation and 
Feedback 

Project Manager for Leisure, Health & Wellbeing, Housing 
Manager, Senior Community Services Officer, Cllr Rebecca 
Aldam, Cllr Julie Job, Cllr Jenny Miles, Cllr Chris Brine, Cllr Mattie 
Ross. 

Report Author 
 

Hannah Drew, Physical Activity & Health Development Manager 
Email: hannah.drew@stroud.gov.uk  

Options None 
Background Papers Play Area Consultation and Development Action Plan 
Appendices Appendix A – Stroud District Council Play Framework – August 

2022 
Appendix B – Stroud District Council Play Area Consultation 

Report - July 2022 
Appendix C – Play Area Community Consultation Visits  
Appendix D – Images of recommended investment play areas 
Appendix E – Equality Impact Assessment 
Financial Legal Equality Environmental Implications  

(further details at the 
end of the report) Yes Yes Yes No 

 
1. INTRODUCTION / BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 In October 2021, Stroud District Council applied to Gloucestershire County Councils Covid    

Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) for capital investment for SDC owned play areas to 
help reduce health inequalities by providing accessible play spaces for all.  

 
1.2 In November 2021, Stroud District Council had confirmation that their bid for £300,000 had 

been successful.  
 

1.3 A further £25,000 became available from COMF to resource the project. 
 
1.4 In February 2022, Community Services & Licencing Committee approved the Play Area 

Consultation and Development Action Plan to start the work on the action plan.  
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

https://stroud.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4576/Appendix%20E%20-%20Play%20Area%20Consultation%20and%20Development%20Action%20Plan.pdf


Housing Committee  Agenda Item 7 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

2. Play Area Consultation and Development Action Plan – Progress  

2.1 Stage 1 – Physical Condition Survey – A review of all SDC owned play areas conducted    
by ROSPA 

2.1.1 All play areas had a Safety Inspection completed in March 2022. These reports highlighted 
any risks and rated them low, medium, or high. 

2.2 Stage 2 - Insight – Understanding the community around the play areas including current 
user profile, demographics now and future, activity level, current budget provision.  

2.2.1 In May 2022, Ethos, instructed by SDC to update the data from the Open Spaces and 
Green Infrastructure Study from the original data in 2019 to 2022.  

2.2.2 Ethos created a prioritisation framework (page 2, Stroud District Council, Play Framework, 
August 2022) in consultation with the Physical Activity & Health Development Manager to 
determine where improvements are most needed (Appendix A). The framework 
considered the following: -  

• Quality of site 

• Proximity/access to other play areas 

• Demographics e.g., number of children in the area 

• Child health and wellbeing 

• Levels of child deprivation 

• Geographical barriers to play – rurality 

• Proximity to a community hub   

2.2.3 The Play Framework outlines the sites that are high, medium, and low priority. This data 
helped to inform the recommendations for investment. (Section 6, pages 21- 30, Stroud 
District Council, Play Framework, August 2022)  

 
2.2.4 In May 2022, Leisure Net, instructed by SDC to undertake community consultation with 

residents, key stakeholders, town and parish councils and members. (Appendix B) The 
report highlighted the need to improve our play provision across the district. Residents well 
regarded town and parish council owned play areas.  

 
2.3   Stage 3 - Identify - How the insight could be delivered including a management options 

 appraisal, facility investment and links to community delivery and community hubs. 
 

2.3.1 In July 2022, we set up Task and Finish group including, members from Housing and 
Community Services & Licencing committees. The group analysed the data and insight 
from both external reports (appendix A & B), conducted play area site visits and created a 
set of recommendations for investment. 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 7 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

3. Recommendations for Investment  

3.1 The recommendations for investment of the £300,000 COMF funding based on the data 
and insight gained via consultation are as follows:-  

1. Cambridge Avenue, Dursley 

2.  Acacia Drive, Dursley 

3.  Mason Road, Stroud 

4. Archway Gardens, Cainscross 

5. Wharfdale Way, Stonehouse    

3.1.1 Recommendations for Signage  

3.1.2 New signage for all 32 Stroud District Council owned play areas. 

3.2 Recommendations for Repair 

3.2.1   Repairs to play areas highlighted by the ROSPA inspections and Ethos Report include: 

• Deveraux Crescents 
• Daffodils Play Area, Kings Stanley 
• Innocks Estates Play Area 
• Norton Wood, Nailsworth 
• Orchard Road, Cainscross 
• Bunting Hill Play Area, Nailsworth 

 
These repairs to be funded by existing budget from the Housing Revenue Account or 
General Fund.  

3.3 Recommendations for Repurpose  

3.3.1    Repurposing existing play areas into an alternative green space provision include:  

1. The Brambles 
2. Manor View 
3. Little Mill Court  

3.3.2    Community consultation is required prior to any repurposing of the play areas. 

4. IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 Financial Implications 
There are financial implications associated with this report for both the General Fund and 
HRA. Any spend based on the recommendations for investment (3.1) must be managed 
within the existing funding resources from COMF. Repairs outlined in 3.2.1 will need to be 
funded from existing SDC budget. 

Adele Rudkin, Accountant 
Tel: 01453 754109     Email: adele.rudkin@stroud.gov.uk  

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

mailto:adele.rudkin@stroud.gov.uk


Housing Committee  Agenda Item 7 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

4.2 Legal Implications 

As the County Council are providing a grant, SDC must comply with any terms imposed 
as a condition of the funding and legal advice should be sought on those terms.  

The Council’s Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules will need to be complied with 
when appointing third parties to carry out the improvements.  
 
One Legal: legalservices@onelegal.org.uk 
 

4.3 Equality Implications 
An EIA has been carried out by Officers in relation to the decision made in this report and 
due regard will be given to any implications identified in it. 
 

4.4 Environmental Implications 
There are no significant implications within this category. 

 

 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7

mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk


Stroud District Council Play Framework  0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Stroud District Council  

Play Framework 
 

FINAL – August 

2022 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  1 

CONTENTS         PAGE NO. 

 

1.0 Introduction         2 - 4 

2.0 Existing provision of play space       5 

3.0 Analysis of existing play space      6 - 7 

4.0 Quality Assessment        8 - 18 

5.0 Prioritisation of play space methodology    19 - 20 

6.0 Results of prioritisation process      21 – 30  

7.0 Summary          31 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 16

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  

Ethos Environmental Planning were commissioned by Stroud District Council to undertake a 

Play Framework as part of a wider piece of work for their Play Area and Development Action 

Plan. Stroud District Council (SDC) have been awarded funding from Gloucestershire County 

Council for capital investment into SDC owned play areas to help reduce inequalities by 

providing accessible play spaces for all. This strategy will assist in making decisions about 

where the funding will be spent.  

1.1 Play Area and Development Action Plan  

The action plan aims to plan and manage high quality accessible play spaces that positively 

contribute to the wellbeing of the community it serves. It will ensure that play areas are:  

• Well Designed to encourage play and community cohesion.  

• Well Located where possible, near to other community facilities and good pedestrian 

and cycle networks.  

• Well Regarded to ensure the communities value the sites, have ownership of them 

and are engaged in the redesign and maintenance of the spaces.  

The plan is broken down into 4 stages:  

1. Physical condition survey – a review of SDC owned play areas.  

2. Insight – understanding the community around the play areas including current user 

profile, demographics, activity levels and current budget provision.  

3. Identify – how the insight can be delivered including management options appraisal, 

play area investment and links to community delivery and community hubs. 

4. Commitment – secure commitment to the identified play areas that will receive capital 

investment and redevelopment.  

1.2 Prioritisation Framework  

‘Planning for Play’ suggests that prioritisations for play space improvements should be based 

on an objective assessment to determine where improvements are most needed. This follows 

this guidance by applying needs criteria to the 32 SDC owned play areas The criteria area 

based on:  

• Quality of site  

• Proximity/access to other play areas  

• Demographics e.g. numbers of children in the area  

• Child health and wellbeing  

• Levels of child deprivation  

• Geographical barriers to play – rurality  

• Proximity to a community hub  

The principle behind the prioritisation approach is illustrated as follows:  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 17

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  3 

 

As a result of this process the framework categorises all sites under three headings:  

• High priority for improvement  

• Medium priority for improvement  

• Low priority for improvement  

This document is referred to as a framework rather than a plan because it does not aim to 

produce a prescriptive play area delivery plan that the Council must follow rather it provides 

evidence that the Council can use in reviewing, developing, and implementing their own 

individual delivery plans. The framework provides an overview of the Council owned sites 

across the district and applies objective needs-based criteria to all those sites – to arrive at 

strategically determined site categorisation classifications.  

1.3 Overview of the area  

Stroud District is in the county of Gloucestershire and covers an area of approximately 45,325 

hectares (about 175 square miles). The district’s natural environment is widely protected 

national policy and statutory legislation with a large proportion of the eastern part of the 

district falling within in Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The western 

part is characterised by the landscape of the Severn Vale bounded by the Severn Estuary.  

Stroud is the main focal point of the functional urban area within the Stroud Valleys, which 

are home to around 49,000 people equating to around 40% of the district’s population. 

Outside of the Stroud Valleys lies Stonehouse and further south are the towns of Cam and 

Dursley. To the north of the district, Hardwick forms part of the Gloucester Urban Fringe. The 

remaining countryside parts of the district are mainly used for agricultural and comprise of 

several smaller towns, villages, and hamlets.  

1.4 Population and geographical boundaries 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  4 

The total population for the Stroud District is 120,903 (mid-year 2020 estimates). The 

breakdown by ward (including the child population by ward is shown in the table below).  

It was agreed with the project team that analysis would be undertaken by ward, due to the 

prioritisation data being in this format. 

Table 1 Ward population statistics (ONS 2020 mid-year estimates) 

Ward Child population (Age 0-
15) 

Total population  

Amberley and Woodchester 326 2,149 

Berkeley Vale 1,208 7,320 

Bisley 342 2,348 

Cainscross 1,711 8,389 

Cam East 719 4,596 

Cam West  673 4,077 

Chalford  1,062 6,248 

Coaley and Uley 419 2,427 

Dursley  1,557 7,647 

Hardwicke 1,772 7,822 

Kingswood 474 2,152 

Minchinhampton 743 4,541 

Nailsworth  1,103 6,601 

Painswick and Upton  1,383 7,353 

Randwick, Whiteshill and 
Ruscombe 

280 1,979 
 

Rodborough  752 4,458 

Severn  998 5,411 

Stonehouse  1,269 7,350 

Stroud Central  331 2,181 

Stroud Farmhill and Paganhill  385 2,477 

Stroud Slade  483 2,501 

Stroud Trinity  326 2,162 

Stroud Uplands  319 2,106 

Stroud Valley  399 2,333 

The Stanleys  834 4,634 

Thrupp  408 2,359 

Wotton-under-Edge  1,147 7,282 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  5 

2.0 EXISTING PROVISION OF PLAY SPACE  

This framework focuses on the 32 play spaces owned by Stroud District Council but considers 

other play spaces within the analysis later within the report. Stroud District Council manage 

21 play areas and 2 MUGAs with the General Fund managing 14 sites. Within this framework, 

32 sites will be analysed. This excludes the 2 MUGAs and 3 sites play areas; one of which isn’t 

under the control of the council and two sites the play equipment has been removed and the 

site has already been redesignated.   

Figure 1 32 SDC owned play areas within this framework  

 

 

A large proportion of play spaces across the district are managed by town/parish councils, 

with some play spaces also being managed by independent management companies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  6 

3.0 ANALYSIS OF EXISTING PLAY SPACE  

3.1 Quantity  

This section provides an analysis of existing quantity of play space within Stroud District. The 
Open Space Study (2019) provides quantity standards for both children’s and youth play 
space.  

Table 2 Quantity standards for play spaces (Open Space Study, 2019) 

 

 

The following tables show the existing supply of play space across the district1, followed by 

the individual wards where SDC owned sites are located. Where there is insufficient supply of 

play space, the minus number is highlighted red to make this stand out.  

Table 3 Existing supply of children’s and youth play space across the Stroud District  

 

Table 4 Supply of children’s and youth play space (hectares) by ward 

Ward Play Space 
(children) 

Play Space (youth) 

Berkeley Vale 0.01 -0.34 

Cainscross -0.11 -0.34 

Cam West -0.1 -0.02 

Coaley and Uley 0.06 -0.13 

Dursley  -0.24 -0.27 

Hardwicke -0.25 -0.46 

Nailsworth 0.03 -0.31 

Painswick and Upton 0.01 -0.38 

Stonehouse -0.15 -0.24 

Stroud Central 0.3 -0.01 

Stroud Farmhill and Paganhill -0.14 -0.19 

Stroud Slade -0.12 -0.1 

Stroud Trinity -0.06 -0.11 

Stroud Valley 0.2 -0.14 

The Stanleys 0.21 0.01 

Wotton Under Edge -0.19 -0.43 

 
1 This includes all sites across the district, not just SDC owned sites. The analysis is using the 2019 open space 
mapping and ONS mid-year 2020 population figures.  

Typology Quantity Standard (ha/1,000) 

Play Space (Children) 0.06 

Play Space (Youth) 0.06 

Typology Existing 
Provision 
(ha) 

Existing 
provision 
(ha/1,000) 

Required 
Provision 
(ha) 

Required 
Provision 
(ha/1,000) 

Supply 
(Ha) 

Supply 
(Ha/1,000) 

Play Space 
(Children) 

6.55 0.05 7.25 0.06 -0.7 -0.01 

Play Space 
(Youth) 

4.23 0.03 7.25 0.06 -3.02 -0.03 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 21

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  7 

As can be seen from the tables above, based on the mid-year 2020 population figures there 

is a shortfall in both children’s and youth play across the district. Of those wards where there 

are SDC owned play spaces, there is variation across the wards with Berkeley Vale, Coaley, 

and Uley, Nailsworth, Painswick & Upton, Stroud Central, Stroud Valley and The Stanleys 

having sufficient provision of children’s play space. All wards except for The Stanleys have 

shortfalls in youth play spaces.  

3.2 Access  

The recommendations for the play spaces in Section 6.0 also take into consideration access 

to play spaces. The Open Space Assessment (2019) developed access standards which are 

summarised in the table below:  

Table 5 Stroud Open Space Assessment – Access Standards for children and youth play space 

Typology Access Standard  

Play Space (Children) 480m (10 minutes’ walk time)  

Play Space (Youth) 720m (15 minutes’ walk time)  

 

The Open Space Assessment (2019) found that there are significant gaps in access to 

children’s play in the middle of Stroud Valleys in particular Amberley, Woodchester and 

Brinscombe, in the settlements of Frampton and Whitminster within the Severn Vale and in 

Stonehouse.  

In terms of youth facilities, there is gaps in access to in Berkeley town, the east of Cam, south 

of Wotton and Costwold area (Painswick, Miserden, Cranham, Bisley and Pitchcombe).  

These access standards have been used within the recommendations section to determine if 

there is any overlap in access between play spaces2. This determines that if a play space were 

removed, it would not result in a gap in access.  

The access buffers have been rerun using walk time (in contrast to the Open Space Study 

(2019) which uses straight line distances), The walking buffers are generated using ESRI’s 

service area tool with a standard 5kph walking speed and detailed isochrone output. The tool 

follows paths and roads that allow pedestrian traffic (as specified by Esri which uses Here 

mapping data), and therefore takes account of physical barriers to access such as rivers and 

railway lines - the buffer will follow bridges/tunnels/crossing points.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
2 This includes all play spaces in the district, not just SDC owned sites.  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  8 

4.0 QUALITY ASSESSMENT  

This section provides a summary of the quality audit for the play area undertaken in June/July 

2022. The GIS database containing the full audit results and geolocated photos has been 

provided to the Council. 

The audits were undertaken using an agreed methodology following the 2019 Open Space 

Study quality audit methodology. Audits of this nature can only ever be a snapshot in time 

and their main purpose is to provide a consistent and objective assessment of a sites’ existing 

quality and potential for improvement.  

ROSPA inspections have also been carried out in March 2022 by SDC which will also help to 

inform quality and opportunities.  

4.1 Audit Methodology 

Sites have been visited, and a photographic record made of key features, along with a 

description of the site and recommendations for improvements. An assessment of the quality 

of the site was undertaken using the following criteria:  

• Welcoming 

• Good and Safe Access 

• Safe Equipment & Facilities 

• Appropriate Provision of Facilities 

• Quality/Management of Facilities and Infrastructure 

• Personal Security on Site 

• Litter and Waste Management 

• Grounds/Habitat Management 

 

For each of the criteria a score of 1 -10 is given, where 1 is very poor and 10 is very good. The 

scores for each site are added together and the mean calculated based on how many criteria 

were scored. This mean is then multiplied by 10 to produce the final score from which sites 

are grouped into 3 categories: 

 

• Good quality (those sites with a score of between 71 and 100) 

• Average quality (those sites with a score of between 41 and 70) 

• Poor quality (those sites with a score of between 10 and 40). 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 23

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  9 

4.2 Summary of quality audit results  

A summary of the quality audits undertaken is provided in the table below:  

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

Acacia Drive Dursley A small play area with a slide, rocker and 
swing set aimed at young children. 
Equipment is dated, worn, and has low play 
value except for the new rocker. The whole 
site has soft safety surfacing. Two benches 
and a bin. The fencing is very worn and there 
are areas of vegetation growing through. 

Repaint fence. Replace older equipment. 
Better management of surrounding 
vegetation. 

 

62.5 - Average 

Archway Gardens Stroud Farmhill 
and Paganhill  

A small, fenced play area consisting of a 
swing (one missing), slide/climbing frame 
and another piece of redundant equipment. 
Equipment is in a poor condition and is worn. 
Site has two entrance points, one of which is 
accessed by a hard surfaced path. A notice 
board with some leaflets of local activities. 
Grounds consists of short mown grass with 
safety surfacing under the swing. Two litter 
bins but still signs of littering.  

Add bench. Update equipment and increase 
the amount of provision.  

 

60 – Average 

Bearlands Play 
Area 

Wotton Under 
Edge 

A medium sized play area with two swing 
sets, climbing frame/swing, carousel, 
hammock swing and balance trail. 
Equipment is all wooden and is in a good 
condition with fairly good play value. Good 
welcome signage and two entrances 
connecting to different areas of housing. The 
grounds are mainly grass with an area of 
concrete under the seating area and some 
worn safety surfacing. Wooden planters 

Improve safety surfacing under equipment. 
Improve maintenance of access paths to site 
and the planters around the edge of the site.  

 

75 – Good  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  10 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

around the edge which area quite 
overgrown. 

Betworthy Estate Coaley and Uley  A small, unfenced play area with a swing set 
(one suitable to babies and one for children), 
two swing/climbing frame sets (again one for 
toddlers and one children) and a bowl 
carousel. Equipment is in a good condition 
but could have better play value. The 
grounds were well managed, and had 
welcome signage, bench, and litter bin.    

Space to add additional play equipment.  

 
80 – Good  

Blackwell Close Stonehouse A small, fenced children's play area aimed at 
young children. Site has a swing, rocker, two 
mushroom seats, play panels and a 
slide/climbing frame. Equipment is dated 
and looks worn. There are two entrance 
points but one of which is locked. Grounds 
include safety surfacing under equipment 
and then grass and one tree. There is one 
bench and litter bin. 

Add welcome signage.  

 
71.25 – Good  

Boakes Drive  Stonehouse A small, fenced children’s play area aimed at 
small children. Site consists of a slide, 
climbing frame, rocker and counting boards. 
Grounds are concrete with safety surfacing 
under equipment. Equipment looks worn, 
dated and has a fairly low play value. Good 
entrance points. One bench and one litter 
bin. 

Add some trees/plants. Replace dated 
equipment with more imaginative 
equipment.  

 

67.5 – Average 

Bunting Hill Play 
Area 

 

Nailsworth  A large, fenced play area with a range of 
equipment including two swing sets, 
roundabout, slide, climbing frame, seesaw, 
rocker, and some small interactive counting 

Add missing pieces of equipment from swing 
sets. Add welcome signage. 

 

62.5 - Average 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  11 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

games. There is also one redundant swing 
set, and one existing swing set is missing a 
swing. Equipment is worn and well used and 
has low play value. Ground consists mainly of 
short mown grass with the roundabout and 
climbing frame having safety surfacing. Site 
has three entrances via gates. There are two 
benches and one litter bin and some signs of 
littering/fly tipping.  

Cambridge 
Avenue  

Dursley A small, fenced play area with a swing set, 
seesaw, and slide. Equipment is worn but 
still in a good condition but has low play 
value. Whole site has soft safety surfacing 
with some areas torn. One bench with some 
littering underneath. 

Add welcome signage. Add litter bin. Add 
hard surfaced path from footpath. Replace 
equipment to include items of imaginative 
play. 
 

56.25 - Average 

Daffodils Play 
Area 

The Stanleys A small play area set within an amenity green 
space with four pieces of equipment 
including two swing sets, a seesaw and two 
rockers. Equipment is outdated, worn and 
has low play value. Grounds of the site are 
overgrown, and the site has one bench.  

Replace older play equipment. Add welcome 
signage. Better maintenance of grounds. Add 
litter bin. Potentially fence off from wider 
site. 
 

46.25 – Poor  

Devereaux 
Crescent  

Cainscross A small play area with a climbing frame/slide 
and second climbing frame. There is a 
redundant swing set. Equipment is worn and 
parts have graffiti on it. Lots of littering 
despite litter bin present on site. One bench. 
Ground consists of grass which was quite 
long at time of site visit. 

Improve access to site through construction 
of a path from wider amenity. Replace 
redundant swing equipment. Remove graffiti 
off play equipment and replace old 
slide/climbing frame. 
 

61.25 - Average 

Draycott Play 
Area 
 

Cam West  A small play area aimed at young children. 
Site consists of a swing set (one swing 
suitable for babies and one for children), a 

Improve play value. Remove and cut 
encroaching weeds. 
 

67.5 – Average  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  12 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

slide/climbing frame and an upright spinner. 
Equipment is in a good condition but has low 
play value. Site had some littering and toys 
that belonged to residents nearby in it. 
Entrance was easily accessible from housing 
estate by a tarmac path. Grounds consisted 
of grass which looked like it had been cut 
recently. 

Highfield Road 
Play Area 

Stroud Trinity A small, fenced play area with two swing 
sets, slide, rocker and rocking horse. 
Equipment is worn and outdated with poor 
play value. There is a missing swing on the 
swing set. Access to the site is quite hidden 
in between housing. Welcome signage at the 
entrance and the grounds of the site are 
based on safety surfacing which is quite 
patchy. Litter bin and bench located on the 
wider site.  

Add directional signage to access points. 
Upgrade play equipment. Replace missing 
swing.  
 

60 – Average  

Innocks Estate 
Play Area 

Wotton Under 
Edge  

A small play area aimed at young children. 
Equipment is dated, worn and has low play 
value. Site has a seesaw, slide and swing set. 
Site has two entrances one from the wider 
amenity and one from the pre-school. Whole 
site has artificial grass surfacing. No other 
facilities.   
 

Add welcome signage. Improve access from 
wider amenity.  
 

66.25 – Average  

Little Mill Court Stroud Valley  A very small, fenced play area with two 
pieces of equipment; a seesaw and balance 
beam. Equipment was in a good condition 
and looked new. There was also a bench and 
litter bin. Access to the site is via a gate from 

Better play equipment to make best the use 
of the small space. 
 

65 – Average  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  13 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

the main footpath. Grounds consist of short 
mown grass.  

Manor View  
 

The Stanleys A single swing set located between housing 
and main road. Equipment was in a fairly 
good condition and based on safety 
surfacing which was encroached with moss. 
Site was hard to find and there was no 
signage. Access to the site was via overgrown 
grass. No other facilities or infrastructure. 

Add more equipment to make into a play 
area. Cut back surrounding vegetation to 
make site more accessible. Add directional 
signage to the site. 
 

50 – Poor  

Mason Road Play 
Area 

Stroud Slade  A medium sized fenced play area with a 
seesaw, climbing frame, toddler 
swing/climbing frame, two swing sets 
(children on swings at time of audit so no 
photos). Equipment was outdated and worn, 
with low play value. Two benches and two 
bins. Grounds consisted of short mown grass 
with equipment based on safety surfacing.  

Replace outdated equipment. Add welcome 
signage. Improve access to area with a hard 
surfaced path linking to wider amenity. 
 

62.5 – Average  

Merlin Close Play 
Area  

Painswick and 
Upton  

A large children’s play area with a good 
range of new high quality equipment for a 
range of age groups. Equipment includes 
rockers, slide, climbing frames, swings, mini 
flying fox. There are several access points 
with wide paths and easily accessible gates 
and signage. Several bins and litter bins. One 
bench has got graffiti on it and a small 
amount of litter present. 

Remove graffiti off bench. 
 

81.25 – Good  

Norton Wood 
Play Area 

Nailsworth A large play area with a range of equipment 
including a swing/climbing frame, two swing 
sets, climbing wall, activity boards and a 
balance trail. Equipment looks well used and 
has good play value. Some equipment has 

Remove graffiti off equipment. Better 
cordoning of equipment. Potential space to 
add more planting round edge of site.  
 

70 – Average  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  14 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

graffiti on it. There is a broken rocker which 
has a bag over it. Several entrances 
connecting different housing areas. Main 
entrance has good signage. Several benches 
and two litter bins. Grounds mainly consist of 
short mown grass, but some equipment has 
safety surfacing.  

Orchard Road 
Greens 
 

Cainscross A medium sized fenced play area consisting 
of a swing set, rocker, toddler slide/climbing 
frame and climbing frame. Toddler climbing 
frame is worn and has some graffiti on it. All 
equipment is based on safety surfacing. 
There are also two benches and a bin. Site is 
quite hidden from the roads and no signage 
indicating a park. Access to the site is also 
across a large grassy area. 

Add signage. Improve access to site through a 
path. Remove graffiti off equipment. 
 

58.75 – Average  

Stratford Park 
Skatepark 
 

Stroud Central A large skatepark set within the grounds of a 
leisure centre. Skatepark was in a good 
condition despite graffiti which is normal for 
a skatepark. Site is easily accessible through 
hard surfaced paths. There are several litter 
bins and benches. 

Add welcome signage. 
 

78.75 – Good  

Stratford Park 
Toddler Play Area 
 

Stroud Central A medium sized fenced toddler play area 
with a swing, climbing frame, rockers, little 
house and hop scotch. The whole site has 
safety surfacing and is fenced off from wide 
leisure centre site. Equipment looked well 
used but was in a fairly good condition. 
Several entrance points, benches outside of 
the site and a litter bin. 

None. 
 

77.5 – Good  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  15 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

Stratford Play 
Field Play Area 
 

Stroud Central A field play area consists of a flying fox, 
wooden trail, small slide, slide/climbing 
frame, large swing and one redundant piece 
of equipment. A mixture of old and new 
equipment, the climbing frame/slide is 
looking dated and worn. but overall play 
value is fairly good. A picnic area with several 
benches and litter bin. Site is more informal 
than the site next to it and doesn’t have a 
formal entrance point or paths but does 
connect well and enhance the wider park.  

Replace some of the dated equipment. 
Improve some of the worn areas of ground.  
 

71.25 – Good  

Stratford Play 
Junior Play Area 
 

Stroud Central A junior fenced play area with three swing 
sets (one baby, one child and one old child) 
slide/climbing frame, rockers, roundabout, 
and floor marking games. Equipment was a 
mixture of old/new but was generally in a 
good condition and provided equipment for 
a range of ages. Some parts of safety 
surfacing were loose. Good welcome signage 
at entrance and access to site through a wide 
tarmacked path. Litter bins and benches 
within the site, with some occasional 
littering. 

Replace areas of safety surfacing that are 
ripped. 
 

71.25 – Good  

Summer Street 
Play Area 
 

Stroud Valley A large play area based on a hill with a range 
of equipment for different ages including a 
balance trail, three swing sets, two climbing 
frames, two slides, play house and a tree 
house. Most of the equipment is made of 
wood and is in a good condition. The 
entrances are quite tricky to find, and access 
is via steep uneven paths. There are several 

Clear vegetation under play equipment. 
Improve access points to make more 
accessible. Replace worn welcome signage. 
 
 
 
 

62.5 - Average 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  16 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

benches and bins. The grass is well 
maintained but under the climbing frame 
and tree house it is very overgrown. Lots of 
benches and litter bins.  

The Brambles 
 

Berkeley Vale  A small children's play area with minimal 
play equipment. Site has just one slide and 
two small children's benches. Slide is in a 
good condition. There is also a redundant 
frame where swings used to be. Ground has 
soft surfacing but is becoming overgrown 
with weeds. Site is fenced and has a good 
wide path leading to a gate to access the site. 
There is also a litter bin and bench at 
entrance.  

Replace and update play equipment. Better 
maintenance of grounds of site, remove 
weeds etc. 
 

58.75 – Average  

The Tynnings  
 

Nailsworth A large, fenced play area with a good range 
of equipment with good play value. Site has 
a large swing/climbing frame, two swing 
sets, seesaw, and rocker. Equipment is a 
mixture of old and new and looks like it is 
being slowly replaced. Slide has graffiti on it. 
Play area has welcome signage at entrance 
and accessed via is gate. Grounds consist 
mainly of grass with the swings having safety 
surfacing. One bench and litter bin.  

Remove graffiti off slide. Add bench at other 
end of play area. Create hard surfaced path 
from road to play area to improve access. 
Better management of the plants around 
edge of site. 
 

75 – Good  

Westrip Place 
Play Area 
 

Cainscross A small play area with a swing, climbing 
frame and seesaw.  Equipment was in good 
condition and looks fairly new and based on 
safety surfacing. Site is well connected to the 
adjacent housing. One litter bin and some 
signs of littering. 

Signage to encourage putting litter in bins. 
Add welcome sign. 
 

75 – Good  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  17 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

Wharfdale Estate 
Play Area 1 
 

Hardwicke A small toddler play area with three pieces of 
equipment; a slide and two rockers. The 
equipment was in a good condition and 
looked well used. Site was surfaced in safety 
surfacing and had a bench and litter bin. The 
surrounding edge of site had quite a few 
weeds encroaching the site. 

Add welcome signage. Remove weeds and 
improve grounds maintenance. When 
equipment becomes redundant replace with 
higher play value equipment. 
 

68.75 – Average  

Wharfdale Estate 
Play Area 2 
 

Hardwicke A medium sized play area aimed at young 
children. Site has two rockers, a set of swings 
and a climbing frame/swing. Equipment is in 
a good condition but looks well used. 
Grounds consist mainly of short mown grass 
with safety surfacing under equipment. Site 
had a bench and litter bin as well.  

Access to site could be improved by adding a 
hard surfaced path from play area to main 
path. Add welcome signage. 
 

68.75 – Average 

Wharfdale Estate 
Play Area 3 
 

Hardwicke A small children’s play area with a slide and 
climbing frame. Equipment has low play 
value and equipment is in a good condition 
except for the slide has graffiti on it. There 
are two benches and one litter bin, and some 
littering present at time of site audit. 

Add welcome signage. Remove graffiti off 
equipment. Improve access from amenity 
green space surrounding site by creating a 
pathway. 
 
 

68.75 – Average 

Wharfdale Estate 
Play Area 4 
 

Hardwicke A small children’s play area aimed at young 
children. Site has a swing, two rockers, small 
climbing frame, and slide. Equipment is in a 
good condition although a little dated and 
well used. Grounds have mixture of safety 
surfacing and grass. There is one bench and 
a litter bin and signage at the entrance to the 
site.  

Improve access to site from main road by 
adding hard surfaced paths suitable for 
pushchairs. Regular maintenance off grass as 
site is rather long. 
 

68.75 – Average 

Wharfdale Way 
Play Stonehouse 
 

Stonehouse A small play area behind housing comprising 
of a slide, see saw and climbing frame. 
Equipment was fairly new and in a good 

Add bench. Potential to add a couple of other 
small pieces of equipment for example some 
imaginative play. 

67.5 - Average 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  18 

Site Name Ward Description  Suggestions for Improvement Overall Quality 
Score 

condition, and slide made use of the mound 
in the middle of the site. Several entrance 
points, one of which had signage. One litter 
bin and no signs of littering. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  19 

5.0 PRIORITISATION OF PLAY SPACE METHODOLOGY  

5.1 Priority Factors/criteria  

The table below sets out the prioritisation factors that have been used for this framework. 

Table 6 Priority Factors  

Priority Factor Statistics used  

1. Demographics (% 0 – 15-
year-olds within each ward) 

Office for National Statistics – population of 0 – 15-year-olds 
at ward levels (mid – year 2020) 
 

2. Child excess weight 
reception children 
(overweight and obese 
combined) 

National Child Measurement Programme at MSOA for 
reception children aggregated across three years 2016 – 19  
 

3. Child excess weight year 6 
children (overweight and 
obese combined) 

National Child Measurement Programme at MSOA for year 
6 children aggregated across three years 2016 – 19 
 

4. Proximity to schools Mapping using OS Mastermap 

5. Proximity to other play 
areas 

Mapping using Stroud OS 2019 dataset  
 

6. Child Deprivation  IMD – income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI) by 
LSOA (2019) 

7. Rural Deprivation to 
services 

IMD – geographical barriers (subset of the barriers to 
services by domain) by LSOA (2019) 

8. Quality  Ethos quality audit rank score based on the June 2022 site 
visits. 

9. Proximity to community 
hub 

SDC Hub Map  

 

5.2 Scoring play areas  

For each of these criteria/priority factors listed in Table 6, a scoring has been applied and set 

out in Table 7 below, to prioritise each play area.  

Table 7 Desktop assessment scoring criteria for prioritising sites  

Priority Factor Scoring  

1. Demographics Up to 16% of ward population is between 0-15 years old: 
score 1 
16 – 18% of ward population is between 0-15 years old: 
score 2 
Above 18% of ward population is between 0-15 years old: 
Score 3 

2. Child excess weight 
reception children 

Significantly higher than district average – score 2 
No significant difference to district average – score 1 
Significantly lower than district average – score 0 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  20 

Priority Factor Scoring  

(overweight and obese 
combined) 

3. Child excess weight year 6 
children (overweight and 
obese combined) 

Significantly higher than district average – score 2 
No significant difference to district average – score 1 
Significantly lower than district average – score 0 

4. Proximity to schools <300 metres: Score 3 
300 – 400 metres: Score 2 
400 - 500 metres: Score 1 
>500 metres: Score 0 

5. Proximity to other play 
areas 

<200 metres: Score 0 
200 – 350 metres: Score 1 
350 – 500 metres: Score 2 
>500 metres: Score 3 

6. Child Deprivation Ranked between 1 – 3: score 3 
Ranked between 4 – 6: score 2 
Ranked between 7 – 9: score 1 
Ranked 10: score 0 

7. Rural Deprivation to 
services 

Ranked between 1 – 3: score 3 
Ranked between 4 – 6: score 2 
Ranked between 7 – 9: score 1 
Ranked 10: score 0 

8. Quality Good sites – score 1 
Average sites – score 2 
Poor sites – score 3 

9. Proximity to community 
hub 

<1000 metres – Score 3 
1000 – 3000 metres – Score 2 
3000 – 5000 metres – Score 1 
>5000 metres – Score 0 

 

5.2.1 Priority scores  

The total score for each play area is calculated by adding up each of the scores. The range of 

total scores (from 9 to 20) for each site has been used to group the play areas into 3 priority 

categories as follows:  

• Total score 9 - 12: Low priority for improvement 

• Total score 13 - 15: Medium priority for improvement  

• Total score 16 - 20: High priority for improvement  

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  21 

6.0 RESULTS OF PRIORITISATION PROCESS  

This section sets out the results of the prioritisation process set out in Section 5. The map below shows the priority for improvement (high, 

medium, and low) for each SDC play area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  22 

6.1 High priority sites  

There are 11 play spaces that have been identified as high priority for improvement (i.e. those sites which score between 16 and 20).  

The ‘Ethos recommendation’ column considers the quality audit, the priority for improvement and the quantity and access analysis and 

recommends if sites should be retained, retained, and improve or if they have potential for alternative open space use.  

Table 8 Play areas that are a high priority for improvement  

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Access 
Buffer 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

Acacia Drive Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Dursley  62.5 - 
Average 

-0.24 0.04 76.58% An average quality play space with potential to 
improve. The site falls into the high priority for 
improvement and has high levels of child 
deprivation and a high percentage of 0 – 15 year 
olds within the ward. There is a shortfall of 
children’s play space within this ward, and 
therefore it is recommended that this play space 
is retained and improved.  

Blackwell Close General 
Fund 

Stonehouse  71.25 - 
Good 

-0.15 0.05 99.94% A small, good quality play space located near to 
primary schools and a community hub. Despite 
this falling into the high priority for improvement 
category, this play space already of good quality, 
therefore it is recommended that it is retained.  

Boakes Drive General 
Fund 

Stonehouse 67.5 – 
Average  

-0.15 0.02 23.28% A small, average quality play space located near 
to primary schools and a community hub. The 
ward also has high levels of rural deprivation. 
There are shortfalls in the provision of play space 
within the ward, therefore it is recommended 
that this site is retained and improved with the 
outdated play equipment being replaced.  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  23 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Access 
Buffer 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

Cambridge 
Avenue 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Dursley 56.25 – 
Average 

-0.24 0.03 16.49% An average quality play space within a ward which 
has a high percentage of 0 – 15 year olds, and 
located over 500m from other play spaces. There 
are shortfalls in the provision of play space within 
the Dursley ward, therefore it is recommended 
that this play space is retained and improved.  

Little Mill Court General 
Fund 

Stroud Valley 65 - 
Average 

0.2 0.01 91.57% A very small average quality play space located 
near to a community hub. The site provided low 
play value due to the small nature of the site, and 
there is little potential for improvement. The loss 
of the play area would not result in a gap in access 
(Stroud Park and Parliament Street open space 
nearby have good quality play spaces) and there 
is also sufficient supply of provision within the 
ward, therefore it is considered that this site may 
have potential for alternative use.  

Manor View General 
Fund 

The Stanleys  50 - Poor 0.21 0.02 2.81% A small poor quality play space consisting of a 
single swing set. The loss of this play space would 
not result in shortfall in the provision of play 
space within the ward but would result in their 
being no play space in the settlement of Selsey. It 
is recommended that this site is retained and 
improved, however, the small size of this site may 
limit the opportunities available.   

Mason Road 
Play Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Stroud Slade 62.5 – 
Average  

-0.12 0.07 5.66% A medium sized average quality play space in a 
ward with a high percentage of 0 – 15 year olds 
and high levels of rural deprivation. The loss of 
this site would cause further a shortfall in 
provision in the ward and create a large gap in 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  24 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Access 
Buffer 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

access. It is therefore recommended that this play 
space is retained and improved.  

Merlin Close 
Play Area  

General 
Fund 

Painswick and 
Upton 

81.25 – 
Good  

0.01 0.24 99.97% A good quality large play space in an area with 
high rural deprivation and a high percentage of 0 
-15 year olds within the ward. This space is in a 
key location near a community hub, therefore it is 
recommended that this play space is retained.  

Stratford Park 
Skatepark  

General 
Fund 

Stroud 
Central  

78.75 – 
Good 

-0.01 0.31 40.51% A good quality skatepark located within a leisure 
complex. The site is in close proximity to a college 
and a community hub. The loss of this site would 
cause a further shortfall in provision and access to 
youth play spaces. It is recommended that this 
site is retained.  

Summer Street 
Play Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Stroud Valley 62.5 - 
Average 

0.2 0.38 31.72% A large play area located near to a primary school 
and a community hub. Despite there being a 
sufficient supply of play space within the Stroud 
Valley ward, the loss of this site would result in a 
shortfall in provision and create a larger gap in 
access. It is recommended that this site is retained 
and improved.  

Westrip Place 
Play Area  

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Cainscross 75 – Good -0.11 0.05 92.56% A good quality play area in a ward with a high 
percentage of 0 -15 year olds and located in close 
proximity to a community hub. There is also a 
shortfall in the supply of play spaces within this 
ward therefore it is recommended that this play 
is retained.  

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  25 

6.2 Medium priority sites  

There are 11 play spaces that have been identified as medium priority for improvement (i.e. those sites which score between 13 and 15).  

The ‘Ethos recommendation’ column considers the quality audit, the priority for improvement and the quantity and access analysis and 

recommends if sites should be retained, retained, and improved or if they have potential for alternative open space use.  

Table 9 Play areas that are a medium priority for improvement 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

Archway 
Gardens 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Stroud 
Farmhill and 
Paganhill 

60 – 
Average  

-0.14 0.02 9.52% A small average quality play space which is located 
near to a community hub. There is a shortfall in 
children’s play space across the ward and a loss of 
this play space would create a large gap in access. 
It is therefore recommended that this play space 
is retained and improved.  

Daffodils Play 
Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

The Stanleys  46.25 – 
Poor 

0.21 0.33 62.91% A large poor quality play area located in a ward 
with high rural deprivation and over 500m from 
other play spaces. The loss of this play space 
would lead to a shortfall in play provision in The 
Stanleys ward and create a gap in access. It is 
therefore recommended that this play space is 
retained and improved.  

Devereaux 
Crescent 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Cainscross 61.25 - 
Average 

-0.11 0.06 26.98% An average play area in an area with a high 
percentage of 0 -15 year olds and high levels of 
rural deprivation. There is a shortfall of play space 
across the ward, therefore it is recommended that 
this site is retained and improved.  

Draycott Play 
Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Cam West 67.5 – 
Average 

-0.1 0.04 81.19% A small average quality play space within a ward 
which has a high levels of year 6 excess weight and 
rural deprivation. There is a shortfall in the 
provision of play spaces within the ward and a loss 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  26 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

of this site would increase the shortfalls further. It 
is therefore recommended that this site is 
retained.  

Highfield Road 
Play Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Stroud Trinity 60 – 
Average 

-0.06 0.03 97.51% A small average quality play space located near to 
a community hub. There is a shortfall of play 
spaces within the ward, therefore it is 
recommended that this site is retained and 
improved especially improving the play value of 
the space.  

Innocks Estates 
Play Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Wotton 
Under Edge 

66.25 – 
Average 

-0.19 0.03 0 A small average quality play space located in North 
Nibley. This is the only play space within the 
parish; therefore, the loss of this space would 
result in further shortfalls in supply and access. It 
is recommended that this space is retained.  

Norton Wood 
Play Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Nailsworth 70 – 
Average 

0.03 0.23 99.91 A large average quality play space in close 
proximity to a primary school. The ward has a 
sufficient provision of play space, and this is a large 
site in a key location in the town, therefore it is 
recommended that this site is retained.  

Orchard Road 
Green 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Cainscross 58.75 – 
Average 

-0.11 0.02 99.92 A small average quality play space in an area with 
a high percentage of 0 -15 year olds and high levels 
of rural deprivation. The loss of this small play 
space would result in a further shortfall in 
provision in Cainscross ward, therefore it is 
recommended that this play space is retained and 
improved.   

Stratford Play 
Field Play Area 

General 
Fund 

Stroud 
Central 

71.25 – 
Good 

0.3 0.66 100 A good quality large play space located within a 
leisure complex and next to another play space. 
The site is nearby to a primary school and 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  27 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

community hub. This is a key play space and 
should therefore be retained.  

Stratford Play 
Junior Play Area 

General 
Fund 

Stroud 
Central 

71.25 – 
Good 

0.3 0.33 100 A good quality large play space located within a 
leisure complex and next to another play space. 
The site is nearby to a primary school and 
community hub. This is a key play space and 
should therefore be retained. 

Wharfdale Way 
Play Stonehouse  

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Stonehouse 67.5 - 
Average 

-0.15 0.13 10.54 A medium sized average quality play space located 
near to a community hub and within a ward with 
high levels of rural deprivation. There is a shortfall 
of play space within the ward, and the loss of this 
site would create a further shortfall and a large 
gap in access. It is recommended that this play 
space is retained and improved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  28 

6.3 Low priority sites  

There are 10 play spaces that have been identified as a low priority for improvement (i.e. those sites which score between 9 and 12).  

The ‘Ethos recommendation’ column considers the quality audit, the priority for improvement and the quantity and access analysis and 

recommends if sites should be retained, retained, and improve or if they have potential for alternative open space use.  

Table 10 Play areas that are a medium priority for improvement 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

Bearlands Play 
Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Wotton-
under-Edge 

75 – Good -0.19 0.11 54.32 A good quality medium sized play area which has 
good play value. The loss of this site would result 
in a further shortfall in provision and a large gap in 
access, therefore this play space should be 
retained.  

Betworthy 
Estate 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Coaley and 
Uley 

80 – Good 0.06 0.04 99.87 A very good quality play space despite its small 
size. The site is a low priority for improvement and 
therefore it is recommended that this play space is 
retained.  

Bunting Hill Play 
Area 

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Nailsworth 62.5 - 
Average 

0.03 0.24 99.87 A large average quality play space located within 
an area with a fairly large percentage of 0 – 15 year 
olds. This space is a low priority for improvement 
and the loss of this space would cause a shortfall 
in provision. It is recommended that this play 
space is retained and improved.  

Stratford Park 
Toddler Play 
Areas 

General 
Fund 

Stroud 
Central  

77.5 – Good 0.3 0.13 79.39 A well-used, large, good quality toddler play area 
located within a leisure complex. The site is a low 
priority for improvement and therefore it is 
recommended that this play space is retained. 

The Brambles General 
Fund 

Berkeley Vale 58.75 – 
Average 

0.01 0.04 93.55 A small average quality play space which has poor 
play value. The loss of this play space would result 
in a shortfall in provision within the ward, 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  29 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

however, it would only create a small gap in 
access. There are two other good quality (assessed 
in the Open Space Assessment 2019) play spaces 
located within parks and recreation grounds 
within the town of Berkeley, therefore it is 
considered that this play space may have potential 
for alternative use, providing that nearby provision 
within the ward is extended to prevent shortfalls 
in provision.  

The Tynnings Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

Nailsworth 75 – Good 0.03 0.07 69.06 A medium sized good quality play space with good 
play value. The site is a low priority for 
improvement and therefore it is recommended 
that this play space is retained. 

Wharfdale 
Estate Play Area 
1  

General 
Fund 

Hardwicke 68.75 – 
Average 

-0.25 0.02 99.94 A small average quality toddler play area within a 
ward with a high percentage of 0 – 15 year olds 
and high level of rural deprivation. There is a large 
shortfall in the provision of play spaces within the 
ward, but overall good access with three other 
play spaces within the Wharfdale Estate. It is 
recommended that this site could be considered 
for alternative use due to the good access to other 
nearby larger play areas, provided that nearby 
spaces can be extended to avoid making a further 
shortfall in provision within the ward.  

Wharfdale 
Estate Play Area 
2 

General 
Fund 

Hardwicke 68.75 – 
Average 

-0.25 0.04 90.78 A small average quality play area within a ward 
with a high percentage of 0 – 15 year olds and high 
level of rural deprivation. There is a shortfall in the 
provision of play spaces within the ward, but 
overall good access with three other play spaces 
within the Wharfdale Estate and one within 50m.  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  30 

Site Name  Ownership Ward Quality 
Score 

Ward 
Supply 
(ha) 

Area of 
Site (ha) 

Percentage 
Overlap 

Ethos Recommendations  

It is recommended that this site is retained. There 
is potential to merge the two play spaces to create 
one large play area within the amenity of 
Wharfdale Day.  

Wharfdale 
Estate Play Area 
3 

General 
Fund 

Hardwicke 68.75 – 
Average 

-0.25 0.05 99.92 A small average quality play area within a ward 
with a high percentage of 0 – 15 year olds and high 
level of rural deprivation. There is a shortfall in the 
provision of play spaces within the ward, but 
overall good access with three other play spaces 
within the Wharfdale Estate and one within 50m. 
It is recommended that this site is retained. There 
is potential to merge the two play spaces to create 
one large play area within the amenity of 
Wharfdale Day. 

Wharfdale 
Estate Play Area 
4 

General 
Fund 

Hardwicke 68.75 – 
Average 

-0.25 0.04 96.23 A medium sized average quality toddler play area 
within a ward with a high percentage of 0 – 15 year 
olds and high level of rural deprivation. There is a 
shortfall in the provision of play spaces within the 
ward, but overall good access with three other 
play spaces within the Wharfdale Estate. It is 
recommended that this site is retained. 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  31 

7.0 SUMMARY  

Quality of Play Areas  

The site audits of the 32 play areas found that:  

• 11 sites were assessed as being of good quality  

• 20 sites were assessed as being of average quality  

• 2 sites were assessed as being of poor quality  

Prioritisation 

There are 11 spaces identified as a high priority for improvement, 11 identified as medium 

priority for improvement and 10 identified as low priority for improvement.  

16 of these sites have been recommended to be retained and 13 sites have been 

recommended to be retained and improved. If a site has been assessed as being of good 

quality, the recommendation is to retain (rather than retain and enhance), but there may be 

local aspirations for improvements that will not have been picked up from the quality audit. 

This means that there may be some good quality spaces that are nonetheless identified for 

improvement.  

Some play spaces are limited in the play value that they can offer due to their size/location 

and/or may be of average/poor quality. Where sites are overlapping in access and do not 

result in a shortfall in provision, they may be suitable for alternative open space use, 

especially where other existing high quality play areas are in close proximity. This is 

irrespective of a site’s priority for improvement.  

Of the 32 sites, we have identified that there are 3 play spaces which may have potential for 

alternative use which are:  

• The Brambles (low priority for improvement) 

• Little Mill Court (high priority for improvement) 

• Wharfdale Estate Play Area 1 (low priority for improvement) 

The decision if a site is suitable for alternative open space use will of course depend on the 

needs of the local community (who should be consulted before such a decision is made), and 

it is important to note that sites below are those with potential for alternative open space use 

– it is not the final recommendation of this framework that they are secured for alternative 

open space use, but rather that further investigation is needed.

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



Stroud District Council Play Framework  32 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A

Page 47

Agenda Item 7
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



Stroud District Council 

Play Area Consultation 

Report

1Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



01

02

Project Background............................................................... 3

03

Question Breakdown...............................................................7

05

Contents

Stroud District Council 

Play Area Consultation Report

04

The Survey in Numbers............................................................6

06

Appendix 1 – Open Text Responses.........................................16

Appendix 2 – Community Consultations...................................41

Key Findings……………............................................................4

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 50

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



Project Background01

3

Project: Stroud District Council – Play Area Consultation Report

Date of Research: June/July 2022

Project Background

Stroud District Council is undertaking a review of the 32 council-owned play parks across the 

district, and it has engaged Leisure-net as its consultants to support this project. Play areas 

and green space are vital for the health and wellbeing of young children and their families. 

The funding will be used to improve some of the key areas across the district, updating them 

with equipment which is fun and fit for purpose. This consultation, together with public 

health data, will be used to identify the communities which are in greatest need.

One of the council’s three main priorities is Community Resilience and Wellbeing, and 

stakeholder engagement forms part of a wider consultation including a community 

consultation survey, focus groups and door-to-door consultations where play areas 

surround residential dwellings.

Leisure-net

Leisure-net Solutions, the industry leader for Customer Insight and Market Intelligence in 

the active leisure industry, is delighted to present this report of research, carried out on 

behalf of Stroud District Council.  

Research Methods

The data within this report was gathered using an online survey, complemented by 

stakeholder interviews and focus groups. The survey was completed in June 2022 and was 

an online self-selection survey, so while the sample size is 483, it is skewed heavily towards 

females, as might be expected bearing in mind the subject. In our experience it is also likely 

to be completed by residents with a stronger view on local provision/service, who are also 

likely to be more active and/or involved or have an interest in local provision, the results 

should therefore be analysed in this context. 

The survey was advertised to local residents through a variety of means, including the 

council’s website and social media channels.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



Key Findings –survey 02

4

• Stratford Park Junior Play Area was the most popular with 23% saying they used this
the most.

• 39% of the sample used the play area more than once a week. 8% rarely used it.

• Over half of the sample (51%) take children aged 4-8 years old to the play area

• The main reasons for using the chosen play areas was to enjoy the fresh air/greens
spaces and for their child to be physically active whilst having fun, both at 22%.

• Swings and a slide were chosen as the most popular equipment to make a good play
area with 12% choosing swings and 11% a slide. This was closely followed by 10%
choosing a climbing apparatus.

• Nearly three quarters of the sample (74%) felt that themselves and their children
were safe in their chosen play area.

• 17% of the sample said that Stratford Park Junior Play Area was the other play area
they used, this was closely followed by Stratford Park at 16%.

• When asked if they would like the listed play areas to be something else instead,
over half of the sample (58%) said they would like to keep them as play areas.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 52

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



Key Findings – interviews and 

focus groups 

5

One to one interviews or group sessions were carried out with the following 
individuals/organisations;

• Inspection and Maintenance Contractor 
• World Jungle
• Housing Manager
• Community Centre Manager
• All Sort Gloucester
• District Council Members 
• Town Council Members/Clerks 

Key themes 

• More joined up thinking required between different councils and voluntary 
groups/organisations

• Strategic approach to play provision is essential, regardless of who actually provides 
and runs provision

• Must be led by the community and current/potential user groups 
• Important to think “out of the box” and not just provide the “standard play areas” –

users – both carers and children expect more
• Environmental concerns need to be taken into account, both in design but also in how 

usage affects other user groups of open spaces
• Need to recognise impact of global warming and environmental changes for example 

by providing good shade and use of natural products
• Needs to provide for all age groups – older children often get missed out
• The balance between segregating different user groups and integrating them really 

needs to be thought out thoroughly
• Nature/landscaping and the use of natural materials needs to be considered
• The balance between providing a safe environment and one in which children can 

learn by taking risks is critical
• Investment would be better concentrated into a few key developments rather than 

spreading it too thinly
• The investment needs to focus clearly on areas and communities that have the most 

“need”

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



6

The Survey in numbers03

483
SAMPLE

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 54

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



7

04

?
Which of the following play 
areas do you use the most? 
Select one answer

Stratford Park Junior 
Play Area was the most 
popular with 23% 
saying they used this 
the most. 

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 55

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



8Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Which of the following play areas do you use the most? Select one answer

Stratford Park Junior Play Area (Top Field) - Stroud 23%

None of the above 19%

Stratford Park - Stroud (TOP FIELD open area) 7%

Cambridge Avenue / Rangers Avenue 6%
Blackwell Close - Stonehouse 5%

Stratford Park Toddler Play Area (in front of Leisure Centre) - Stroud 5%

Acacia Drive - Dursley 4%
Devereaux Crescent - Ebley 4%

Bunting Hill Play Area (Lawnside) - Nailsworth 3%

Skatepark Area - Stratford Park - Stroud 2%

Draycott Play Area - Dursley 2%

Mason Road Play Area (including bike jumps and skate ramps) 2%

Orchard Road Greens - Ebley 2%

Innocks Estate Play area - North Nibley 1%

Merlin Close - Brockworth 1%

Norton Wood Play Area - Nailsworth 1%

Archway Gardens - Paganhill - Stroud 1%
Summer Street Play Area 1%
Wharfdale Estate Junior Play Area 1%
The Tynings - Nailsworth 1%
Daffodils Play Area - Kings Stanley 1%
Wharfdale Estate Play Area on Wharfdale Way 1%
Betworthy Estate - Coaley 1%
Highfield Road - Stroud 1%
Westrip Place Play Area 1%

Wharfdale Way Play Area - Stonehouse 1%

Wharfdale Estate Play Area near Rosedale Close 0%

Bearlands Play Area - Wotton-under-Edge 0%

Wharfdale Estate Toddler Play Area 0%
The Brambles - Berkeley 0%
Manor View Play Area - Selsley 0%
Boakes Drive - Stonehouse 0%
Little Mill Court - Stroud 0%

Which of the following play 
areas do you use the most? 
Select one answer

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 56

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



9

?

How often do you go 
to this play area?

39% of the sample used 
the play area more than 
once a week. 8% rarely 
used it.

How often do you go to this play area?

More than once a week 39%

Once a week 27%

Monthly 15%

Fortnightly 11%

Rarely 8%

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 57

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



10

?

Age of children 
that you mainly 
visit the play 
areas with:

Over half of the sample 
(51%) take children 
aged 4-8 years old to 
the play area

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Age of children that you mainly visit the play areas with:

4-8 51%

0-3 32%

9-12 14%

13+ 3%

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 58

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



11

?

Why do you use 
this play area? 
Select all that 
apply

The main reasons for 
using the chosen play 
areas was to enjoy the 
fresh air/greens spaces 
and for their child to be 
physically active whilst 
having fun, both at 
22%.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Why do you use this play area? Select all that apply

To enjoy the fresh air/green spaces 22%

For my child to be physical active whilst having fun 22%

It has equipment my child enjoys using 15%

For my child to engage with other children 13%

For my child’s mental health 12%

For my own mental health 7%

To meet other parents/carers 5%

Other (please specify) 3%

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



12

?

What equipment do 
you feel makes a 
good play area? 
Select all that apply

Swings and a slide were 
chosen as the most 
popular equipment to 
make a good play area 
with 12% choosing swings 
and 11% a slide. This was 
closely followed by 10% 
choosing a climbing 
apparatus.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

What equipment do you feel makes a good play area? Select all that apply

Swings 12%

Slide 11%

Climbing apparatus 10%

Sitting benches 8%

Roundabout 8%

Zip wire 8%

Toddler area 7%

Seesaw 7%

Balance beams 6%

Tunnel 5%

Floor Markings i.e. hop scotch/snakes and ladders 5%

Bike/skate ramps 4%

Trim trail 3%

MUGA (Football/basketball courts) 3%

Table tennis table 2%Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 60

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



13

?

Do you/your 
children feel safe 
in this play area?

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Do you/your children feel safe in this play area?

Yes 74%

Maybe/Not sure 14%

No 11%

Nearly three quarters of 
the sample (74%) felt that 
themselves and their 
children were safe in their 
chosen play area.

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



14

?

Do you use any of the other 
play areas listed in question 1? 
if so, select all that apply

17% of the sample said 
that Stratford Park Junior 
Play Area was the other 
play area they used, this 
was closely followed by 
Stratford Park at 16%.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 62

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



15

?

If the listed play 
areas were not play 
areas, what would 
you like them to be 
instead?

When asked if they 
would like the listed play 
areas to be something 
else instead, over half of 
the sample (58%) said 
they would like to keep 
them as play areas.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

If the listed play areas were not play areas, what would you like them to be instead?

Keep them as Play Areas 58%

Sensory Garden 14%

Open Space with benches 8%

Community Garden 8%

Wild Flower Meadow 7%

Allotments 3%

Other (please specify) 1%

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



16

(If No or Maybe/Not sure to not feeling safe) Please explain

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Appendix 1—Open Text 

Responses
05

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 64

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



17
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Continued..(If No or Maybe/Not sure to not feeling safe) 
Please explain

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 65

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



18
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Continued..(If No or Maybe/Not sure to not feeling safe) 
Please explain

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 66

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



19
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Continued..(If No or Maybe/Not sure to not feeling safe) 
Please explain

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 67

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



20

?

Do you have any comments about any of these play areas 
you use, if so, please comment here and state the name/s 
of the play area you are referring to?

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 68

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



21
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 69

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



22

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 70

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



23

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 71

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



24

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 72

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



25

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 73

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



26
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 74

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



27
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 75

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



28
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 76

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



29
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 77

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



30
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 78

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



31
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 79

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



32
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

? Continued.. Do you have any comments

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 80

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



33

?

Do you have any other comments about the play 
provisions in the Stroud area?

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

A big central play area at Stratford park, encompassing all ages would be amazing
A lot of the play areas in the local area have much better facilities than the ones listed
Adding wild flowers or sensory gardens to play areas with benches would be lovely and might make more 
inclusive
All feels dated
All need to be cleaned more.
All Stroud’s play areas are old and run down. With the exception of Horsley, Snakey Park and Whiteshill. These 
are 3 examples of good quality play areas.
As above. None of the parks I have visited are inclusive.
As ï said above it is really not good equipment.  It is also all metal so dangerous/unusable in winter or wet 
weather. In Stratford Park the fenced off area makes no sense.as the bigger slide is in it and.ajd smaller.kids
equipt both in and out.
Caninscross has no toilets. Walking to and from the park is hard for senior citizens and children, has anyone 
thought of this?
Compared to London, there are surprisingly few play areas and some have quite limited equipment. Kings 
Stanley and Stratford Park areas are both very good.
Could do with some more things as named previously
Could there be one built near the new Lidl where the new housing is going to be built? There isnt much in that 
area.
Disability friendly with inclusive play equipment needs to be taken into account.
Do you have any other comments about the play provisions in the Stroud area?

Feel it needs much more equipment at Cambridge avenue, bigger fenced are, something for older children. 
Benches and garden would be lovely. Would still leave dog walking and football area

Firstly more stuff for risky play including higher climbing frames. I love monkey bars and other things for 
building upper body strength - great for us grown ups too when we spend so long huddled over phones! Would 
also love more play areas for all ages including adults. Also love benches to be there because my mobility isn't 
good. Much prefer old school metal play equipment to wooden stuff that gets damaged more easily.
Generally poor.

Generally the play areas don’t have equipment for older children & aren’t very imaginative by design -
compared to some we’ve experienced in Bristol (greville-smythe & Blaise Castle) & Wales (Dolgellau).

Having lived in different areas around stroud I notice some levelling up is needed! For example i think 
problems with equipment are fixed far quicker at somewhere like daisy bank than somewhere like archway 
gardens. It has now been fixed which is great, but the fence had been broken for a very long time there. Also I 
think one swing is still missing at archway. Their may be more vandalism in some areas more than others but 
that is more an indication of need than a reason not to bother. There are also some community signs around 
stroud with nothing on them- its not clear if the community themselves are aloud to put things up on these or 
if they are for official council notices. For example- DER community noticeboard- has been empty for over 9 
months at least. Having an empty community sign seems worse than no sign at all to me.
Highfields Play Area in Dursley is not properly maintained. The gate is broken and there is always lots of 
rubbish and dog poo around the park. The toddler swing has been removed and not replaced for some reason.
Horsley Park is lovely,  as is Slimbridge and France Lynch.

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 81

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



34

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 82

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



35

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 83

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



36

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 84

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



37

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 85

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



38

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 86

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



39

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 87

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



40

?

Continued.. Do you have any other comments

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 88

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



41

Appendix 2 - Community 

Consultations
06

Management Contractor – street cleaning and grounds 
maintenance - 07.07.22

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

External contractor manage the contract for inspection 

and maintain – 16 years in role.

Very limited budget, job is to manage risk with a small 

benefit – did have play builder funding – refurbished 6 

play areas. 

Learning to play is vital for all children, great fun, social 

interaction for kids and parents, child’s first experience 

of taking risk, challenging self, learning about spatial 

awareness, understanding of speed and movement. 

Interaction with other carers and parents, meet new 

people I similar situations. Very good for your people 

with learning and physical disabilities.

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Variety of activity, has to be challenging, targeted at an 

age range. Some are too small – bigger play areas at 

Stratford Park within green space is a good example after 

refurb. Have worked in Scotland working in large country 

parks. Cafes can assist to draw people to larger play 

areas. Toilets not always required, not necessarily for 

local play areas, needed for destination parks. 

Sand and water play needs to be done properly, can be 

expensive though, good for destination play areas. Play 

equipment needs to be accessible where possible.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 89

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



42

Do you currently 

use any of the 32 

listed play areas 

for delivery of 

your work? 

Client management function.

Are there any of 
the 32 play areas 
you think we 
should be 
considering for 
investment and 
why? 

Highfields has not had work for a while, all decisions need 

to be made on future need of population predictions.

Survey of potential users to understand need. Bunting Hill 

top of Nailsworth could be looked. The Daffodils in King 

Stanley surrounded by lots of retired people – could this be 

re defined.

Green infrastructure and Playing Pitch Strategy should be 

considered. Identifies under provision in Parishes.

Play is important, areas that can be walked to are vital when 

considering location of any new sites.

Question Response

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 90

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



43

World Jungle – 08.07.22

“We manage a social enterprise called World Jungle using play and art to bring 
communities together. We use parks and open spaces to really get into the 
community, we have a real belief in the power of green spaces”

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

Free play opportunities are really important for children 

and adults. Parks are managed resources which take up 

budget, so we need to make more use of them. I don’t 

think they are used enough, the benefits to the 

community are massive.

Some the major challenges we are facing today, such as 

obesity and the mental health can all be helped by parks, 

open spaces and play areas. 

Important for both children and adults alike.

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Sometimes play areas are tucked away in “out of the 

way” areas where developers have left over ground, they 

need to be central and a focus of the community. 

Children need to feel safe, and carers need to feel safe as 

well.

Location needs to be thought about and not discouraged 

by vocal minorities. 

Sometimes planning is influenced by one or two 

powerful voices, in terms of location. 

Frist and foremost they should be beautiful places, not 

just about sticking kit in a park, the space should fit in 

the surrounding environment. 50% of a play areas 

sometimes go on fencing and safety survey, which does 

nothing to attract children. Let’s look to the continent to 

see what can be done with imagination.

The health and safety culture has impacted on the “play 

experience”, in fact it’s fairly low risk, but this has 

impacted on design making some play areas “boring”.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 91

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



44

What makes a 

play area a “good” 

play area for your 

users? i,e, 

equipment, 

toilets, 

accessibility, 

signage 

(continued)

There is the need for challenging and explores their limit.

Older children to teenagers are sometimes left out because 

of “perceived dangers” of creating spaces for them, but 

really this older age group is important to provide for. 

Different spaces are required for different ages. 

More thought needs to be put into landscaping areas, with 

hills and tunnels, rather than just going for what the 

equipment suppliers come up with. 

Fencing is not always required, open access is preferable if 

possible, so children can “roam”, into more informal “play 

journeys” bringing in surrounding space.

Perceived dangers are not always the main danger, but in 

fact its mainly traffic issues which are the main concern, so 

road crossings

Do you currently 
use any of the 32 
listed play areas 
for delivery of your 
work?

Get confused between the town and parish owned ones, 

but we use lots of parks and play areas in our work. When 

we set up, we try to locate ourselves near any “kit” in the 

park so that it becomes part of the event. Quite often the 

play areas are located quite deep into the park, so that 

sometimes makes it difficult to use it as we are concerned 

about accessibility for wheelchair users etc.

Question Response

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Are there any of 
the 32 play areas 
you think we 
should be 
considering for 
investment and 
why? 

Highfields Park is a good example of somewhere that needs 

investment. A Youth Shelter which was taken out after we 

worked on putting it in.

The main Rec at Dursley needs some youth/team facilities 

put in.

Cam Jubilee field and the park behind Kings Hill House – the 

estate park really needs some work.

Generally, more thought needs to be given to catering for 

the older children for example spaces/shelters with blue 

tooth and wifi, so they can play music etc.
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 92

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



45

Question Response

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Any other 
comments

It would be good to think outside the box in terms of what 

can be in the open space around it. What is the route to the 

play area? For example, veg patches and family allotments. 

Towns and city public space tends to be adult focused, not 

child focused. Any play area review needs to be child/family 

focused, so that the whole experience and area becomes 

child friendly. 

Because a lot of play areas are devolved to town and parish 

council, so if funds are going into developing play areas, 

then let’s consult with the children and the communities 

and involve them in the design. For example, a company 

called Touchwood involves young people in the design and 

building of shelters/spaces for their own community. 

Could we have boxes where some kit like balls and bats are 

kept, ok you may lose them but its low value, how can we 

make spaces “playful” without spending a lot of money on 

the traditional kit. 

Finally can we mobilise local parents more and get them 

involved in the creation of these play areas, so that 

management of the areas is really community orientated. 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 93

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



46

Housing Manager –08.07.22

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

Parks are paid for housing revenue budget, really 

important to the health and wellbeing agenda for 

children and adults – housing plays a big part in health, 

connected communities, kids love going to the park. Lifts 

mood, tires you out, physical and mental wellbeing, very 

little programming or promotion of play parks currently.

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Have done some work with residents group, to create a 

new park, reading chairs, stepping stones, give kids a 

chance to be creative. Not sure what demand is for 

water and sand play – difficultly it will attract ant social 

behaviour. Stratford park great destination park. Local 

parks just need to be local with play equipment and 

benches.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Do you currently use 

any of the 32 listed 

play areas for 

delivery of your 

work?  

Manages the team that manages parks.

Are there any of the 

32 play areas you 

think we should be 

considering for 

investment and why? 

Have not really invested in past 7 years, have paid to 

maintain. Reviewing a rationalised offer.

Strategy – consult with users for good and bad 

experiences, need to consider demographics of the local 

areas and future population changes. Pandemic has 

made people much more aware of value of local park.

Location needs to be walking distance from home.

Could look at education opportunities about flora and 

fauna. 

Is there an opportunity for local business to sponsor 

local play park?

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 94

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



47

District Councillor (Slade Ward) and Manager of Community 
Centre – 12.07.22

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

Lack of things for young people to do that leads to anti-

social behaviour. Play spaces are great meeting place, 

make friends with those that live near them, creates a 

community. The play space at the community centre is 

really small, Play Gloucestershire do some outreach 

sessions from it as it is a useful meeting space. 0 – 5 year 

olds only. Play parks would be more valued if they were 

invested in. Really local is as important as a destination 

park.

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Local park – variety of play equipment, places to sit, 

large open space, use the land that is available, 0 to 

12/13. Products that last over time, not seen outdoor 

gyms work, equipment should not be too noisy. Fill time, 

spark imagination and be sympathic to landscape. Parks 

at top of town has basketball and skate park – kids need 

engagement and education to use. Shaded and sheltered 

areas from extremes of weather.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Do you currently use 

any of the 32 listed 

play areas for 

delivery of your 

work?  

Used park during jubilee celebrations, son is 7 and 

equipment not suitable. Important to the users of the 

community.

Are there any of the 

32 play areas you 

think we should be 

considering for 

investment and why? 

Pagan Hill needs attention, Town Council now own a few 

and are investing. Daisy Banks has been funded by 

parents raising funds – tends to happen in more affluent 

areas. Council could support the more affluent areas to 

fund raise and support the local council owed estates to 

improve play parks.

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 95

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



48

All Sorts Gloucester – 19.07.22

“We work with children with, and families of children with, disabilities. Three main areas of focus –

sport, toy library with sensory room etc, finally we have some youth clubs and young adults – age 

range 0 to 25”.

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

We would normally do consultation ourselves on this, ie

speak to our parents first about this sort of thing. 

However, a school called Paternoster in Cirencester put a 

lot of play equipment into the school, and we worked 

with them to develop a play area that was suitable for all 

sorts of disabilities. 

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Disabled access to the area itself and then to key bits of 

kit such as wheelchair access to roundabouts etc.

Needs to be contained so that clients don’t run off.

The perfect environment is something that is dedicated 

to children and families with disabilities, when they go to 

an area sometimes, one or two bits of equipment have 

been adapted, which is difficult. 

Ancillary facilities such as toilets and changing rooms are 

really important, so perhaps better to have one or two 

play areas in the area that are dedicated rather then 

adapt a few bits of equipment. 

But I think it would be ok for these sites to be used by 

everyone if possible. 

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Do you currently use 

any of the 32 listed 

play areas for 

delivery of your 

work?  

We don’t at the moment, but I must admit I haven’t 

gone and looked at them. We do hire a range of facilities, 

such as Paternoster school for specific activities. 

Sometimes we take in kit with us but that’s not ideal.

Are there any of the 

32 play areas you 

think we should be 

considering for 

investment and why?

When we have meet with Hannah in the past, Stratford 

Park has been mentioned. This would be quite central, 

and well served by public transport. 

Any other comments Our frustration is that in all environments that there is 

adequate pathways for wheelchair users. When you cant 

even enter a play space to watch your siblings play that 

is very disappointing. 
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 96

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



49

District Council Members Focus Group – 19.07.22 - 6pm

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

Play areas are run down but used a lot by the community 

(Nailsworth example of community led events and 

holiday activities taking place in these areas)

They create a sense of place /community and inclusion.

Investment is important to demonstrate that these areas 

are valued and the importance of them to their local 

community is recognised. 

Play areas are ‘people places’ and should promote 

accessibility and inclusion for all of society.

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Ensure it is a natural biodiverse, ecological and 

sustainable space – not a concrete jungle.

It should be a welcoming space for adults not just little 

ones as parks are vital for parents to meet and socialise 

with others – equally it should be a space which enables 

grandparents and older generations to attend. 

Generational inclusivity was mentioned several times. 

Equipment should allow for the adventurous and less 

adventurous children with an element of sensory play. 

“Let them play and get dirty” – emphasis for a natural 

play environment.

“Make space for Girls” campaign should be considered.

Ensure the play area allows for varying age ranges (not 

just young children) and gender should also be 

considered.

Safety is vital – the area should not be secluded and 

always visible.

Enhances the whole community and can help with 

people feeling isolated and lonely – a place ‘to be’ but 

with safeguarding considerations and anti-social 

measures in place.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 97

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



50

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage (continued)

Benches for older people – should feel pleasant to spend 

time in.

Truly accessible – not just a token piece of equipment –

accessible from car park through to and including play 

area.

Good mix of kit that enables physical and create play –

multiple use from same piece of kit would be ideal.

365 use of park accounting for changing seasons – shade 

is of particular importance.

Be adventurous with play kit – e.g. install a ‘pillow’ / 

dedicated adult gym.
Are there any of the 

32 play areas you 

think we should be 

considering for 

investment and why?

Good geographical spread – move focus away from 

central Stroud.

Focus on a few – do it well and re-energise the 

community with the development – make a bigger 

difference with a few rather than adding a little to more 

and having minimal impact.

Target those that need it most – show them ‘some love’

Create a template/blue print on the success of the few 

developments.

To assess which play areas are most in need a systematic 

approach is required which is fair and transparent. This 

objective prioritisation tool ought to consider a number 

of factors including key demographic data for each area. 

The outcome of this process and subsequent 

development could then lead to the creation of a ‘best 

practice’ guide to share with those who do not receive 

any funding. 

The prioritisation tool could also identify quick wins as 

well as the longer-term strategic focus.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 98

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



51

Any other comments Strong emphasis on ensuring the process is as important 

as the outcome.

Visibility on communication of consultancy process –

how was survey sent and who completed it.

It is vital to empower parents and local community in 

shaping their play areas.

Community involvement is required in creating the 

criteria for the prioritisation tool.

Community involvement is likely to increase the sense of 

community ownership and care.

Consider possible partnerships / possibility of match 

funding. 

Could parents help run the play areas as a co-operative 

with potential of a future budget.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 99

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



52

Town and Parish Councillors/Clerks Focus Group – 20.07.22 - 6pm

Question Response
Why is access to play 

areas important to 

your 

organisations/users? 

Very valuable for communities, particularly those that 

have children and the parents that meet there, 

friendships are made, problems are solved, exercise 

happens and physical learning is an important part of a 

child’s future health. 

Socialism opportunities the children get from meeting 

other children other than their school friends.

Good places to become close to nature and good for 

mental health and wellbeing as well as the health of the 

nature itself.

They are hubs for the whole community.

Encouragement to be outside.

Its not just the equipment but the other stuff around it 

that encourages families to want to come and stay. 

Happy adults = children staying longer.
What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage 

Having a variety of different play areas to access with 

interesting things to entertain children and keep them 

active.

Outdoor gyms are good as accessible for children and 

adults (if in the correct areas as not commonly used).

Seating areas for adults.

Something for all age groups.

Equipment that is accessible to all and designed so it can 

be used by people with all physical abilities, not add-ons 

for specific abilities that are so much more expensive.

It’s more than just the equipment, it places for social 

activities – picnic benches, things for older children, 

elderly people, larger people, dogs. 

Disability access.

Access to toilets.

Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022
Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 100

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



53

What makes a play 

area a “good” play 

area for your users? 

i,e, equipment, 

toilets, accessibility, 

signage (continued)

Natural play – wooden equipment, a lot more can be 

done for a lot less money than concrete and steel. Or use 

recyclable plastic, not as aesthetically natural but longer 

lasting. Could be sourced locally to save the carbon 

footprint.

Risk! Kids enjoy risk, things that are fun, high up, things 

that push their physical boundaries, testing what is 

possible. It encourages growth, it looks exciting, new and 

innovative.

They should different and unique.

Places for getting dirty, muddy puddles and sand pits. 

Creative and fun.
Are there any of the 

32 play areas you 

think we should be 

considering for 

investment and why?

Demographics with not much money. Because of cost-of-

living crisis, low earner areas cannot afford to travel to 

good play areas. They need free entertainment areas to 

go to.

Go where the need is – where people are currently going 

and make it better.

Forest Green area – Families stay close and are not keen 

to go out of the area. The current play areas are tired 

and old fashioned. They need space to have more fun. 

Having a good play area in troubled areas raises people 

praise, standards and cohesion. It’s the glue that keeps 

communities together.

Any other comments Integrate mapping play areas, share information on 

evaluation of each play area on an app. Also promote 

tourism trails.

Frustrating that new housing developers put play areas 

in, they leave them and any problems end up with the 

parish.

Community involvement and local people feel 

passionate about green spaces.

Funding would be welcome as parishes take on facilities 

in towns.
Stroud District Council – Play Area Project June 2022

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B

Page 101

Agenda Item 7
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Play Area Community Consultation Visits 

 

As part of the consultation phase of the Play Area Development and Action Plan a team made up of 

the Physical Activity Development Manager, Senior Neighbourhood and 5 Neighbourhood Warden 

conducted visits to 7 sites across the district from the 26th -28th July 2022.  The team completed a door 

knocking exercise speaking to residents to find out their views on their local play area. Below is a 

summary of some of the comments officers received during their visits.  

 

The Daffodils, Kings Stanley – Tuesday 26th July  

 Take grandchildren twice a day when they visit 

 Foster carer, uses the park, would like a climbing frame 

And more swings 

 Tarmac area is used for children to ride their bikes on and 

Is well used 

 Park mainly suitable for younger children 

 More climbing equipment  

 Suitable for young children more needed for older  

Children. 

 

 

 

 

 

Little Mill, Stroud – Tuesday 26th July  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Attracts teenagers  

 Dog fouling issues 

 Limited play value, we use other play areas 

 Too small   

 

Manor View Area -Tuesday 26th July  

 Not used, really overgrown  

 One child uses it  

 Rarely used 

 Would be better as green space 

 Would like green space, benches & wildflowers 

 Keep as green space no swings 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C

Page 103

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C



 

 

Blackwell Close, Stonehouse – Wednesday 27th July  

 Bigger Swing needed in addition to baby swing as kids 

in the close are growing up. 

 The grass doesn’t get collected we now have a resident  

who mows and picks it up.  

 More seating would be good 

 Really well used by kids in the close 

 Grandkids use it every day  

 School aged children use the play area not older children. 

 More trees 

 When my grandkids come and visit I take them of a tour of playgrounds in the area, including 

this one. They absolutely love it, they loves visiting, they love that they can just go out the back 

gate and there is a park there. It’s safe for a 6 & 8 year old to use it. They grow out of it quite 

quickly as it’s much better for the younger ones. It would be good to have more stuff which 

included climbing stuff which was more of a challenge for older kids”  

Boakes Drive, Stonehouse -Wednesday 27th July  

 My son is 18 and used it all the time when he was little, 

 children do use it currently on the street.  

My grandkids love it when they visit.  

 Keep as it is, we also use the play area over the bridge 

 My children are too old for the equipment  

 

 

 

 

 

Cambridge Avenue, Dursley – Thursday 28th July  

 Inclusive swing would be great for my son 

 More benches  

 Better equipment needed for a wider age range 

 Need a good clean up 

 Better equipment needed  

 Limited play value 

 Its too boring so don’t use it, we go to Highfields 

 Climbing frame needed  

 Well used play area 

 Baby swing would be a good edition 

 Make play area bigger 

 More seating 

 Mixture of equipment 

 Metal slide too hot to use during hot weather 

 Would like to use local play area rather than having to go to the rec.  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C

Page 104

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C



 

Acacia Drive, Durlsey – Thursday 28th July   

 Used by young mums and their kids 

 People use it to have picnics  

 Kids play here all the time but limited play value 

 Connecting the two areas together would be great 

 Creating a community garden 

 Equipment for older children needed 

 Bigger slide needed 

 More seating 

 Well used play park by the local community 

 Limited  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Brambles, Berkely – Thursday 28th July 

 Children use the play area near the football fields.  

 Wild Flower Garden 

 Doesn’t really bother me but need to be tidy  

 I haven’t seen anybody using it 

 More grass maybe an allotments  

 Age of residents in close more retired and no children  

live here.   

 Lovely play area by football field would be better if the 

area was grassed and had some flower beds.  

 

  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C

Page 105

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C



This page is intentionally left blank



Images of recommended investment play areas  

1. Cambridge Avenue, Dursley 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. Acacia Drive, Dursley  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Mason Road, Stroud 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

Page 107

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D



4. Archway Gardens, Cainscross 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Wharfdale Way Play Area, Stonehouse 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D

Page 108

Agenda Item 7
Appendix D



Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E

Page 109

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E



Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E

Page 110

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E



Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E

Page 111

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E



Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E

Page 112

Agenda Item 7
Appendix E



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

STROUD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 

TUESDAY, 13 SEPTMBER 2022 
 

Report Title BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2022/23 QUARTER 1 
Purpose of Report To present the 2022/23 forecast outturn position against the General 

Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue budgets and 
Capital Programme that the Committee is responsible for, in order 
to give an expectation of possible variances against budget. 

Decision(s) The Committee RESOLVES to note the outturn forecast for the 
General Fund and HRA revenue budgets and the Capital 
Programmes for this Committee. 

Consultation and 
Feedback 

Budget holders have been consulted about the budget issues in their 
service areas. The feedback has been incorporated into the report 
to explain differences between budgets and actual income and 
expenditure. 

Report Author 
 

Jon Coldridge, Principal Accountant 
Tel: 01453 754030 Email: jon.coldridge@stroud.gov.uk  

Options None 
Background Papers None 
Appendices None 

Financial Legal Equality Environmental Implications  
(further details at the 
end of the report) Yes Yes No No 

 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to notify members of any known significant variations to 

budgets for the current financial year, highlight any key issues, and to inform members of 
any action to be taken if required. 
 

2. Summary 
 

2.1 The General Fund revenue position shows an expected underspend of (£162k) below 
budget, as shown in Table 1. The General Fund capital forecast shows an overspend of 
£1,132k. 
 

2.2 The HRA is currently expected to have a revenue overspend of £269k and a net capital 
programme overspend of £3,582k. 
 

3. General Fund Revenue Budget Position 
 

3.1 Council approved the original General Fund revenue budget for 2022/23 in February 2022. 
The latest budget for Housing Committee, following carry forwards from 2021/22, is 
£1,107k. 
 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8

mailto:jon.coldridge@stroud.gov.uk


Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

3.2 The budget monitoring position for the service at Quarter 1 shows an underspend of 
(£162k), as summarised in Table 1. 
 
Table 1: General Fund Revenue Budgets 

Housing Committee 
Para 
Refs 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Revised 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Reserve 

Transfers 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Outturn 

Variance 
(£'000) 

Housing Advice  3.3 562  562  399  0  (162) 

Housing Strategy   166  333  333  0  0  

Private Sector Housing   163  213  213  0  0  

Housing General Fund Total   890  1,107  945  0  (162) 
 
 

3.3 Housing Advice and Homelessness – (£162k) underspend 
 
The cost of temporary accommodation is currently expected to be (£162k) lower than 
budget. The bulk of this (£100k), relates to reduced forecast Bed and Breakfast 
expenditure where it anticipated fewer referrals will be made within year. The remaining 
(£62K) being additional grant funding of received from the Ministry of Housing 
Communications and Local Government. 
 
This cost could fluctuate throughout the year and will continue to be monitored closely. 

 
4. General Fund Capital Programme 

  
4.1 The Housing General Fund Capital Programme was approved by Council in February 

2022. This has subsequently been revised to £5,833k after slippage from 2021/22.  
 

4.2 Spend is currently forecast at £6,965k, with a small overspend of £3k on Better Care Fund 
projects which will be funded in full by Gloucestershire County Council. 

 
4.3 Green Homes LADS scheme for park homes - £90k Overspend 

 
The Green Homes LADS for park homes scheme to provide insulation to Park Homes has 
now completed with all outstanding fund balances being repaid to the Department for 
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The overspend relates to slippage where the 
project was extended to a renewed deadline of April 2022. 
 

4.4 Warm Homes £40k overspend 
 
The Warm Homes partnership project to provide first time central heating is in the final 
stages of completion, having been extended until May 2022 as a result of Covid. The 
overspend relates to slippage costs in respect of the delivery agent Severn Wye Energy 
for which funding will be received from the National Grid Warm Homes Fund. 
 
 

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

4.5 Warm homes Low Carbon Initiatives £1,000k pressure 
 
The overspend for Warm homes Low Carbon Initiatives is due to the project becoming 
active after the last round of budget setting. This new project has been set up to provide 
first time renewable central heating to off gas homes with funding provided from the 
National Grid Warm Homes Fund. The budget will be brought into line with the overall 
budget allocation at the next budget setting and reported in Q2 2022. 
 

4.6 The following table gives a breakdown of the programme. 
 
Table 2 – Housing Committee Capital Programme 

Housing Capital Schemes 

Para 
Refs 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Revised 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Outturn 

Variance 
(£'000) 

Better Care Fund Projects   0  0  3  3  

Disabled Facilities Grant Scheme   350  350  350  0  

Green Home LADS Park Homes  4.3 0  0  90  90  

Green Homes LADS 3   1,030  945  945  0  

Health through Warmth Grants   200  200  200  0  
Home Upgrade Grant - Sustainable 
Warmth   4,218  4,133  4,133  0  

Private Sector Housing Loans   15  15  15  0  

Temporary Accommodation   0  190  190  0  

Warm Homes 4.4  0  0  40  40  

Warm Homes-Low Carbon Initiatives 4.5  0  0  1,000  1,000  

Housing General Fund Capital 
Schemes TOTAL   

5,813  5,833  6,965  1,132  

 
5. Housing Revenue Account Budget Position 
 
5.1 The original net Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget for 2022/23 is a transfer to 

reserves of £1,008k, as approved by Council in February 2022.  
5.2 The monitoring position for the service at Quarter 1 shows a projected net overspend of 

£269k (1.0%) of gross spend) against the current budget, following a proposed net transfer 
to earmarked reserves of (£1,158k), as shown in Table 3 (below). 

5.3 It should be noted that there are still many uncertainties around costs for 2022/23, and it 
can be expected that the costs will rise by more than the inflationary amounts included in 
the base budget. It is therefore expected that this could cause further pressure on the 
financial position. Many of these costs are not yet known, for example staffing costs, 
utilities and ongoing costs of materials and labour. Additional information is included in 
paragraph 5.13, and further information will be reported as these costs become clearer.  
 
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

Table 3 – HRA Revenue Summary 

Housing Committee 
Para 
Refs 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Revised 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Reserve 

Transfers 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Outturn 

Variance 
(£'000) 

Dwelling rents and service charges   (23,615) (23,615) (23,442) 0  173  
Other charges and income   (644) (644) (644) 0  0  
Provision for bad debt   200  200  200  0  0  
Total Income 5.4  (24,058) (24,058) (23,885) 0  173  
Supervision and management 5.5  4,538  4,538  4,337  0  (201) 
Repairs and maintenance 5.6 5,294  5,294  5,512  0  218 
Independent Living service   692  692  692  0  0  
Other expenditure   575  575  579  0  4 
Independent Living Modernisation 5.7  452  452  527  0  75  
Total Expenditure   11,551  11,551  11,647  0  96 
Support Service Charges from the 
GF   2,408  2,408  2,408  0  0  

Interest payable/receivable   3,359  3,359  3,359  0  0  
Provision for repaying debt   1,012  1,012  1,012  0  0  

Revenue funding of capital 
programme (Depn & RCCO) 

  7,894  7,894  7,894  0  0  

Total Other Costs and Income   14,673  14,673  14,673  0  0  
Total Net Expenditure   2,166  2,166  2,435  0  269 
Transfers to/(from) HRA earmarked 
reserves   (1,158) (1,158) (1,158) 0  0  

Transfers to/(from) HRA general 
reserves   (1,008) (1,008) (1,008) 0  0  

Total Housing Revenue Account   0  0  269 0  269 
Note: table may contain rounding differences 

5.4 Income – £173k loss of income  
During the course of the last financial year the number of empty council house properties 
undergoing works to make them ready to be let significantly reduced from 164 at the start 
of 2021/22 to 71 at the year end. The Property Care team have worked exceptionally hard 
over this period and during the first quarter of 2022, and have reduced the figure further to 
41, which is now in line with pre pandemic levels. 
The hard work of the Property Care team and its contractors assisted through additional 
targeted resources has meant we are continuing to reduce the recent historical backlog. 
Material and labour supply chains still remains uncertain, and we will continue monitor how 
this may impact on workstreams.  
Garage rents are expected to be higher than budgeted but will continue to reduce in line 
with the approval to review the use of all garage sites. 
An allowance for this non payment of rents is included in the Provision for Bad Debt line. 
The amount is not yet known and it is hoped that this can be reduced during the year 
through proactive support for tenants including sustainable payment arrangements to 
maintain tenancies. 
Income levels will continue to be monitored. 
 

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

5.5 Supervision and Management – (£201k) underspend 
During 2021/22 and early 2022/23 a number of posts became vacant and are actively being 
recruited for through the due process. While these posts are in the process of recruitment, 
performance of the service has been strong. Taking into account vacancy and recruitment 
across the quarter the underspend is estimated to be (£201k).  

 
5.6 Repairs and maintenance – £218k overspend 

There were also a number of posts that became vacant in 2021/22 within Property Care. 
These vacancies are currently actively being recruited for in order to maintain service 
delivery. Taking into account vacancy and recruitment across the quarter the underspend 
is estimated to be (£45k). 

Where trade posts have remained vacant additional costs are being recorded for sub-
contractors in order to maintain work patterns. Further work is being undertaken by the 
property care team to establish the impact of inflation as well as the costs of labour and 
materials in respect of the overall service position.  

Additional slippage expenditure of £140k where costs exceeded the insured value are 
carried forward from 2021/22. Predominantly this relates to exceptional costs of  
making safe, rebuilding the property and reinstating surrounding properties following an 
incident in Newport. 
 

5.7 Independent Living Modernisation - £75k overspend 
The overspend relates to Council Tax charges in respect of buildings at Glebelands and 
Cambridge House which are due to be demolished. Phase 1 extension of time costs, 
increase in build costs, Covid and Brexit have all contributed to delays in the programme 
however it is anticipated that a clearer picture of the timeline for the demolitions should 
emerge for Q2 reporting. 
 

5.8 Transfers to/from Earmarked reserves 
The earmarked reserve transfers included in the budget are shown in the table below.  
 
The transfer from the Independent Living Modernisation is in line with the approved 
budget.  

Further changes to this position are likely, including for the Transformation and Retrofit 
reserves. This will be reported in later budget monitoring reports. 
 
Table 4 – HRA Earmarked Reserves – budgeted transfers 

Earmarked Reserves 

Opening 
Balance  

(£'000) 

Transfer 
in 

(£'000) 

Transfers 
out 

(£'000) 

Closing 
Balance 

(£'000) 
Independent Living Modernisation 2,987  1,039  (2,197) 1,829 
Estate Redevelopment 1,170  0  0  1,170 
Staffing 227  0  0  227 
HRA General Contingency 100  0  0  100 
HRA Carry Forwards 100 0 (100) 0 
Provision for repayment of debt 1,885 1,012 0 2,897 
Transformation 179 0 0 179 
Retrofit 139 0 0 139 
  6,787  2,051 (2,297) 6,541 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

5.9 Additional Inflationary Costs 

As reported in paragraph 5.3 there are still many uncertainties around costs for this year, 
and it is expected that cost forecasts will increase significantly. Three major areas of 
expected increase are salaries, utilities and labour and materials for repairs and 
maintenance. 
Salaries 
An increase of 2.5% has been allowed in the budget. The pay award (which is determined 
nationally) has not yet been agreed, but it is expected to be higher than this budgeted 
increase. 
Utilities 
The Council’s fixed cost contract for gas and electricity ends in September. The cost is 
expected to increase significantly, in line with the costs experienced nationally and globally. 
The base budget assumes an increase of 40-50% on gas and electricity, but it is currently 
expected to be substantially higher than this. 
This will impact on the cost of lighting and heating Independent Living schemes and 
communal areas of blocks. The biggest impact will be for Independent Living schemes with 
a district heating system, where the heating and hot water for individual tenant’s homes is 
supplied through a communal boiler, with the cost initially being paid by SDC and then 
recharged to tenants through a service charge. There are five Independent Living Schemes 
that have a district heating system. 
As these arrangements are classed as commercial gas supply, these tenants are not 
eligible for the energy price cap on the gas supply, as this is only for domestic gas supply. 
However, as approved by Council in February 2022 (having been recommended by 
Housing Committee), the expected additional cost increases have not yet been on to 
tenants through service charges and so these tenants are currently completely protected 
from these increases over winter 2022/23, since the service charges are fixed and can only 
change with Committee approval. This means that the additional cost will need to be 
subsidised by the wider HRA. Members could choose to increase service charges to 
tenants with 28 days notice required. 
Labour and materials 
The cost of labour and materials has risen and remains difficult to predict, with some costs 
increasing much faster than others. More will be known about these costs throughout the 
year, with cost pressures expected, particularly across revenue repairs and maintenance 
and capital major works and new build. 
 

6. HRA Capital Programme 
  

6.1 The HRA capital programme has been revised to £26,603k for 2022/23. This includes 
revised capital budgets due to reprofiling of capital programmes over financial years as 
included in the Budget Setting report. 

6.2 The following table gives a breakdown of the current capital programme. 

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

Table 5 – HRA Capital 

Capital Summary 
Para 
Refs 

2022/23 
Original 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Revised 
Budget 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Forecast 
Outturn 
(£'000) 

2022/23 
Outturn 

Variance 
(£'000) 

Central Heating   1,181  1,381  1,381  0  
Disabled Adaptations   155  155  155  0  
Kitchens and Bathrooms   1,446  1,696  1,696  0  
Major Works   464  464  464  0  
Compliance   434  434  434  0  
Doors and Windows   509  644  644  0  
Electrical Works   499  499  499  0  
Environmental Works   515  515  515  0  
Door Entry   217  217  217  0  
External Works   2,415  2,415  2,415  0  
Fire Risk Assessments   490  490  490  0  
Decarbonisation Project 6.4  0  141  2,883  2,742  
Minor External Works   100  100  100  0  
Total Major Works   8,425  9,151  11,893  2,742  
IT Systems   0  435  435  0  
Total Other Capital Works   0  435  435  0  
Southbank, Woodchester   0  0  0  0  
New Homes Contingency   50  50  50  0  
Canal side: Corner of A419/Downton Rd 
(Former Ship Inn site)   284  297  297  0  
Glebelands   4,508  4,532  4,532  0  
Cambridge House   2,764  2,751  2,751  0  
Broadfield Road, Eastington 6.6 0  0  27  27  
Orchard Road, Ebley   762  867  868  1  
Queens Drive, Cashes Green   488  497  497  0  
Ringfield Close, Nailsworth 6.7  0  540  1,342  802  
Summersfield Road, Minchinhampton   0  0  0  0  
Gloucester St and Bradley St, WuE   1,665  1,785  1,795  10  
Completed Schemes   50  50  50  0  
Total New Build and Development 6.5  10,571  11,369  12,209  840  
Independent Living Modernisation   648  648  648  0  
Total Independent Living Modernisation   648  648  648  0  
Acquisitions   2,000  2,000  2,000  0  
Opportunity Land Acquisition Pot   0  3,000  3,000  0  
Total Acquisitions   2,000  5,000  5,000  0  
Total Capital Expenditure   21,644  26,603  30,185  3,582  

 
6.3 Major Works – £2,742k pressure 

With exception of the Decarbonisation Project no variances are being forecast for Q1 
2022/23. A full review of projects is underway to determine what is deliverable with the 
resources available, with staff and materials resourcing pressures and the current financial 
climate. 

6.4 Decarbonisation Project £2,742 pressure 
The successful bid process for Wave 1 of the decarbonisation project following completion 
of the demonstrator scheme, was secured following the last round of budget setting. With 
council approval the budget will look to be set for this project at the next budget setting 

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 8 
Tuesday, 13 September 2022 

and reported in Q2 2022. The Decarbonisation project will be grant funded from the 
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS). 

6.5 New Build and Regeneration – £840k overspend 
Construction is complete at Broadfield Road and Ringfield Close and an assessment of 
closure costs and the outturn position is underway. These sites have delivered a total of 
29 affordable properties (24 affordable rent, 3 shared ownership and 2 Older person’s 
shared ownership). The final project costs and outturn position will be reported in a future 
budget monitoring report when the assessment of closure costs is complete. 

6.6 Broadfield Road, Eastington reports a £27k overspend which relates to completion date 
slippage of works from 2021/22   

6.7 Ringfield Close, Nailsworth reports a £802k overspend which predominantly relates to 
completion date slippage from 2021/22.  

6.8 Independent Living Housing Modernisation – no variance reported  
The Independent living modernisation programme is on target for 2022/23. 
Work has commenced at Grange View with completion expected in October 2022.  

6.9 Acquisitions – on target 
No properties were purchased in quarter one however further properties have been 
identified to add to the general needs housing stock and work will continue to find 
properties and/or land to increase housing offered by the council. 
This budget is opportunity led, and may not be used in full in each financial year. 
 

7. IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Financial Implications 

This report is of a financial nature, reporting on previous financial activities and expected 
forecasts. Potential financial pressures are detailed in the report. 

Lucy Clothier, Accountancy Manager 
Tel: 01453 754343     Email: lucy.clothier@stroud.gov.uk 

 
7.2 Legal Implications 

As the report and recommendations concern budget monitoring there are no specific legal 
implications. More generally, the authority is required to set a balance budget having given 
regard to the advice of its Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer). Section 25 of the 
2003 Local Government Act requires the Section 151 Officer to comment on the robustness 
of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves. 
 
One Legal 
Tel: 01684 272012     Email: legalservices@onelegal.org.uk  
 

7.3      Equality Implications 
There are not any specific changes to service delivery proposed within this decision. 
 

7.4 Environmental Implications 
There are no significant implications within this category. 

 

Page 120

Agenda Item 8

mailto:lucy.clothier@stroud.gov.uk
mailto:legalservices@onelegal.org.uk


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

 

Performance Monitoring Report Q1:  
Housing Committee 

 

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 2nd August 2022 

Attendees 
Members:  Lindsey Green, Laurie Davies & Katrina Davis 
Officers:   Keith Gerrard, Rachel Brain, Helen Scullard, Alison Fisk, 
Maria Hickman, Steve Miles 

Performance Update (See report below/attached) 

Council Plan Priorities 
(see performance 
management system) 

Summary: Progress & RAG Status 

Action Plans:  8 On Target 

See detailed report below. 0 Not started 

Actions where no information 
has been provided will be 
highlighted  

0 Overdue 

 0 Completed 

Council Plan 
Performance Indicators 
or Milestones (see 
performance 
management system 
where applicable) 

Summary: Progress & RAG Status 

Milestones:  4 On Target 

  0 Not started 

 0 Overdue 

Performance Indicators: 2 Completed 

  2 On Target 

 0 Not Started 

 0 Overdue 

Reports being presented 
to this Committee 
associated with Council 
Plan: 

 

Service Area Indicators 
(not covered in Council 
Plan) 

    
 

Risks 
 

  
Corporate Risk Register presented to Audit & Standards Committee.  
List any relevant Service specific risks.  
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10a



Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

Relevant finance issues  

Any other service issues 
considered at the 
meeting (eg staffing / 
resources) 

 
 

Follow up (any issues 
for consideration at the 
next meeting) 

 

 

Any issues of significant concern to be reported to Audit and Standards 

 

Any actions/recommendations for the Committee 

 

Report submitted by Lindsey Green, Laurie Davies & Katrina Davis 

Date of report 31 August 2022 

 
Please complete and return to the Democratic Services ASAP for circulation to the Committee 

  

Page 122

Agenda Item 10a



Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

Report On: Action Plans, Milestones & Indicators 

Filter By: Cross Cutting Plans, Plan Name: Housing Committee Monitoring Report Housing Quarterly 22/23 

Action Plans, Milestones & Indicators (30) 

CW2: Affordable homes: Build affordable, energy efficient homes and deliver high quality services for all 
tenants by investing in the renovation of existing council homes and meet a range of housing needs for 

those who experience disadvantage and creating a culture of tenant engagement and empowerment. 

Code Action Required / Description Deadline Lead 
Officer 

Status Last 
Monitored 

Comments 

 » CDP
CW2.1
a 

Number of new affordable 
Council homes completed p.a. 

N/A Alison 
Fisk 

Target: 15 
 

Actual: 15 
 

  

Performance Members Comments: We are pleased to see that they target for new Council homes has been completed prior to the deadline of March 2024.  We 
note that there are 4 further sites due to start soon with a total of 43 affordable rental properties.  This is great news especially with the increased need for 
affordable housing. With the number of new homes expected the developments that have been within the Council Homes Programme, a higher target number 
should be considered especially considering the deadline to complete the targets. With the rise in build costs and inflation it would be good to know if there are 
likely to be delays in delivering the housing on the 4 new sites and how this will affect the number of affordable homes built.  

 

 » CDP
CW2.1
b 

Number of new affordable 
homes completed p.a. by 
partners 

N/A Pippa 
Stroud 

Target: 120 
 

Actual: 245 
 

  

Performance Members Comments: Again, brilliant to see that 245 affordable homes were completed by partners to date.  Its noted that 108 of these properties 
are affordable rented and are put on Homeseekers. With the deadline date a higher target should be considered.  
 

CW2.2 Invest £30m over the next 5 
years to repair, maintain and 
invest in current council 
housing stock and bring 
empty council homes back 
into use as soon as possible. 

31/03/20
26 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

29/06/22: 
Quarter 1 

26/08/2022: Performance on voids is 
improving, with fewer voids at any one time 
and reduced turn round times. 

Performance Members Comments: If voids are reducing and turnaround improving, this is always a welcome sight and we look forward to seeing the data on 

voids on voids and turnaround on a monthly basis in order to accurately track improvements being made.  
 

 » CDP
CW2.2
a 

Spend per council property in 
upper quartile compared with 
peers  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: £145  
 

Actual: £217.89 
 

 
Although above target, the actual cost is 
falling.  We are currently confirming 
benchmarking information 

Performance Members Comments: It would be great to when we have those benchmarks to see along targets.  
 

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix A

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3123&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

 » CDP

CW2.2
b 

Empty property (void) ready 

to let turnaround time in 
upper quartile compared with 
peers  

N/A Helen 

Scullard 
Target: Minor voids: 10 days 

 

Actual:  
 

 
We currently have limited benchmarking 

information but will have this for the next 
quarterly report. While data quality on void 
turnaround times is being reviewed we know 
that performance is improving.  The new IT 
system will in future resolve these data issues.   

CW2.4 Provide more opportunities for 
resident involvement in 
housing decisions through 

delivery of the Charter for 
Social Housing Residents and 
our continuing commitment to 
build on resident involvement 
opportunities. 

31/03/20
23 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

21/04/22: 
Quarter 4 

21/04/2022: Quarter 4: We have held several 
participation events for tenants which have 
attracted new people interested in becoming 

involved. When we send out our STAR tenant 
satisfaction survey, we will include information 
encouraging tenants to become involved in a 
variety of ways to improve our services  

Performance Members Comments: Really great work getting tenants involved.  It is important that the communication between tenants and the council 
continues.  Hopefully it will be possible to have more engagement from younger tenants.    
 

 » CW2.
4.2 

Cross service tenants’ scrutiny 
panel established with half 
yearly report to HC on work 
programme delivery. 

30/12/20
22 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

N/A 
 

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CW2.4 
 

 » CDP
CW2.4
a 

80% of tenants are satisfied 
with the training they receive  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 80 
 

Actual: two recent events achieved 
80% and 95% 

 

 
We are receiving positive feedback on the 
training 

Performance Members Comments: As above where tenants have training and information they will have a better understanding of processes and are able to 
highlight when things are not working.   I do feel the target should be closer to 100% - although appreciate that not everyone will be happy with training and 
quality of training.  

 

 » CDPC
W2.4b 

80% of tenants are satisfied 
with the quality and relevance 
of SDC tenant events they 
attend  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 80 
 

Actual: two recent events achieved 
80% and 95% 

 

  

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CDP2.4b 
 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix A

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3125&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3688&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3688&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3348&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3348&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

 » CDP

CW2.4c 

10% increase in the overall 

number of tenants engaged, 
including all consultation 
events, scrutiny panels and 
performance management 
activity. Baselines to be 
confirmed  

N/A Helen 

Scullard 
Target: 10% increase annually 

 

Actual: the new officer is establishing 
the baseline so we can track 
improvements 

 

 
A new Tenant Engagement Officer started at 

the end of August and will be prioritising this.  
Over the past year we have held 7 events and 
each has attracted tenants who had not 
previously attended. 

Performance Members Comments: Fantastic to see so many events taking place.  It would be great to see where they are and that more events like this can take 
place all over the District.  Await the Target and Actual figures.  

 

 » CDP
CW2.4
d 

Increase the number of 
tenants engaged who are 
under 30 years old, including 
all consultation events, 
scrutiny panels and 
performance management 
activity. Baselines to be 
confirmed  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 5 
 

Actual: the new officer will establish 
the baseline and prioritise getting 
younger tenants involved 

 

 
Our new Tenant Engagement Officer will be 

prioritising this and establishing baselines.  The 

majority of involved tenants are over 60, this is 

usual as retired people have the time and 

experience to be involved.  We will be liaising 

with our Youth Council to encourage younger 

people to become involved. 

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CDPC2.4d 

 

EC3: Sustainable Construction and Retrofit: Work with partners to retrofit our council housing stock and 
other public sector buildings, and investing in the skills and capacity in the local economy so all buildings 

across the district can become energy efficient 

Code Action Required / Description Deadline Lead 
Officer 

Status Last 
Monitored 

Comments 

EC3.1 Agree a costed plan to retrofit 
all council homes as necessary 
and begin the first phase of 
delivery to realise optimum 
emission reductions and 
achieve an average Energy 
Performance Certificate (EPC) 
rating C across all council 
homes by 2030. 

31/03/20
24 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

29/06/22: 
Quarter 1 

26/08/2022:  Works now commenced on sites. 
Some supply chain and inflationary issues 
have been identified, and are being closely 
monitored and reported to  the core group  

Performance Members Comments: In light of the issues identified although this looks set to be on target, it would be too early to really know if this can be 
realistically achieved.  
 

 » CDP
EC3.3a
(C) 

Number of enquiries to Warm 
& Well Advice line 

N/A Maria 
Hickman 

Target: 100 
 

Actual: 464 
 

June 464 enquiries, as the cost of living crisis rises 
we are seeing more enquiries for help 

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix A

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3349&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3349&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3101&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September   Appendix A 

Performance Members Comments: It is great to see the scheme being used and there are more enquiries coming in.  Its appreciated that there may be a higher 

demand in the coming months.   
 

 » CDP
EC3.3b
(C) 

Number of measures installed 
through Warm & Well Scheme 

N/A Maria 
Hickman 

Target: 18 
 

Actual: 11 
 

June ii measures installed this quarter, which is 
slightly lower then expected due to changes to 
ECO 4 and the start of new funding streams 
through the sustainable warmth bids 

Performance Members Comments: Comment as above CDPEC3.3b(C)  
 

 

 
 

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix A

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

Report On: Action Plans, Milestones & Indicators 

Filter By: Cross Cutting Plans, Plan Name: Housing Committee Monitoring Report Housing Quarterly 22/23 

Action Plans, Milestones & Indicators (30) 

CW2: Affordable homes: Build affordable, energy efficient homes and deliver high quality services for all 

tenants by investing in the renovation of existing council homes and meet a range of housing needs for 
those who experience disadvantage and creating a culture of tenant engagement and empowerment. 

Code Action Required / Description Dea
dline 

Lead 
Officer 

Status Last Monitored Comments 

CW2.1 Deliver new affordable 
homes across the District, 
through planning policy and 

work with partners including 
community-led housing 
groups, housing associations 
and via our own New Homes 
Programme, which will 
deliver EPC-A rated 
properties in line with our 
Strategy for New Council 
Homes 2020-2024. 

31/0
3/20
24 

Pippa 
Stroud 

On Target 
 

 

12/07/2022: 
Quarter 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

12/07/2022: Quarter 1: New council 
homes programme progressing well 
with targets for this year achieved 

which included delivery of new homes 
at Ringfield Close, Nailsworth and 
Broadfield Road, Eastington. Current 
focus is on delivering the next tranche 
of sites. Due to inflation and material 
cost increases, the anticipated build 
costs for the next 4 sites is currently 
being reviewed again with an update 
due to be reported in the September 
Budget Monitoring report to Housing 
Committee 

 » CDP
CW2.1
a 

Number of new affordable 
Council homes completed 
p.a. 

N/A Alison Fisk Target: 15 
 

Actual: 15 
 

  

 

Performance Members Comments: We are pleased to see that they target for new Council homes has been completed prior to the deadline of March 2024.  We 
note that there are 4 further sites due to start soon with a total of 43 affordable rental properties.  This is great news especially with the increased need for 
affordable housing. With the number of new homes expected the developments that have been within the Council Homes Programme, a higher target number 

should be considered especially considering the deadline to complete the targets. With the rise in build costs and inflation it would be good to know if there are 
likely to be delays in delivering the housing on the 4 new sites and how this will affect the number of affordable homes built.  

 

 » CDP
CW2.1
b 

Number of new affordable 
homes completed p.a. by 
partners 

N/A Pippa 
Stroud 

Target: 120 
 

Actual: 245 
 

  

Performance Members Comments: If voids are reducing and turnaround improving, this is always a welcome sight and we look forward to seeing the data on 

voids on voids and turnaround on a monthly basis in order to accurately track improvements being made.  
 

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3122&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3315&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3316&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

CW2.2 Invest £30m over the next 5 
years to repair, maintain and 
invest in current council 

housing stock and bring 
empty council homes back 
into use as soon as possible. 

31/0
3/20
26 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

29/06/2022: 
Quarter 1 

26/08/2022: Performance on voids is 
improving, with fewer voids at any one 
time and reduced turn round times. 

Performance Members Comments: If voids are reducing and turnaround improving, this is always a welcome sight but we are yet to see the data on voids and 

turnaround on a monthly basis in order to accurately track if improvements are being made.  
 

 » CW2.
2.1 

A rolling 5-year investment 
plan is agreed (as part of the 
MTFP) 

• Quarterly actual delivery 
tracks 5-year investment 
plan 

31/0
3/20
26 

Joe 
Gordon 

Completed 
 

 

N/A The plan will need to be revisited in 
the light of budgetary pressures and 
skills and materials shortages 

 » CDP
CW2.2
a 

Spend per council property in 
upper quartile compared with 
peers  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: £145  
 

Actual: £217.89 
 

 
Although above target, the actual cost 
is falling.  We are currently confirming 
benchmarking information 

Performance Members Comments: It would be great to when we have those benchmarks to see along targets.  
 

 » CDP
CW2.2
b 

Empty property (void) ready 
to let turnaround time in 
upper quartile compared with 
peers  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: Minor voids: 10 days 
 

Actual:  
 

 
We currently have limited 
benchmarking information but will 
have this for the next quarterly report. 
While data quality on void turnaround 
times is being reviewed we know that 
performance is improving.  The new IT 
system will in future resolve these 

data issues.   

CW2.3 Prioritise the prevention of 
homelessness by delivering 
the Next Steps 
Accommodation Programme 
and invest in temporary 
accommodation and 
specialist support, including 
working with partners 

countywide to develop the 
specialist housing and 
support needed. 

31/0
3/20
24 

Pippa 
Stroud 

On Target 
 

 

11/04/2022: 
Quarter 4 

11/04/2022: Quarter 4: Investment in 
temporary accommodation: February 
Full Council gave consent for the grant 
funding of temporary accommodation 
in the form of the purchase and 
conversion of the former Ministers'' 
House in Stroud by Gloucester City 
Homes. A grant agreement is currently 

being drawn up so that the funding 
can be transferred to Gloucester City 
Homes for the purchase. In the 
meantime, Gloucester City Homes has 
submitted a change of use planning 
application to allow the conversion 
works required.  

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3123&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3686&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3686&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3319&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3320&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3124&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

 » CW2.
3.1 

Financial investment in 
support and temporary 
accommodation (C)  

31/0
3/20
24 

Pippa 
Stroud 

On Target 
 

 

N/A 
 

 » CDP
CW2.3
a 

Increase the number of 
homeless cases prevented by 
25% p.a. 

N/A Pippa 
Stroud 

Target:  
 

Actual: 13 
 

  

 » CDP
CW2.3
b 

Reduce the number of 
households in temporary 
accommodation after 56 days 

by 25% pa  

N/A Pippa 
Stroud 

Target:  
 

Actual: 24 
 

  

CW2.4 Provide more opportunities 
for resident involvement in 
housing decisions through 
delivery of the Charter for 
Social Housing Residents and 
our continuing commitment 
to build on resident 
involvement opportunities. 

31/0
3/20
23 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

21/04/2022: 
Quarter 4 

21/04/2022: Quarter 4: We have held 
several participation events for 
tenants which have attracted new 
people interested in becoming 
involved. When we send out our STAR 
tenant satisfaction survey, we will 
include information encouraging 
tenants to become involved in a 

variety of ways to improve our 
services  

Performance Members Comments: Really great work getting tenants involved.  It is important that the communication between tenants and the council 
continues.  Hopefully it will be possible to have more engagement from younger tenants.    
 

 » CW2.

4.2 

Cross service tenants’ 

scrutiny panel established 
with half yearly report to HC 
on work programme delivery. 

30/1

2/20
22 

Helen 

Scullard 
On Target 

 

 

N/A 
 

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CW2.4 
 

 » CDP

CW2.4
a 

80% of tenants are satisfied 

with the training they receive  

N/A Helen 

Scullard 
Target: 80 

 

Actual: two recent events achieved 80% and 
95% 

 

 
We are receiving positive feedback on 

the training 

Performance Members Comments: As above where tenants have training and information they will have a better understanding of processes and are able to 
highlight when things are not working.   We do feel the target should be closer to 100% - although appreciate that not everyone will be happy with training and 
quality of training.  

 

 » CDP
CW2.4

b 

80% of tenants are satisfied 
with the quality and 

relevance of SDC tenant 
events they attend  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 80 
 

Actual: two recent events achieved 80% and 
95% 

 

  

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CDP2.4b 

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3687&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3687&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3317&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3317&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3317&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3318&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3318&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3318&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3125&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3688&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3688&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3347&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3348&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3348&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3348&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

 » CDP
CW2.4c 

10% increase in the overall 
number of tenants engaged, 
including all consultation 

events, scrutiny panels and 
performance management 
activity. Baselines to be 
confirmed  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 10% increase annually 
 

Actual: the new officer is establishing the 
baseline so we can track improvements 

 

 
A new Tenant Engagement Officer 
started at the end of August and will 
be prioritising this.  Over the past year 

we have held 7 events and each has 
attracted tenants who had not 
previously attended. 

Performance Members Comments: Fantastic to see so many events taking place.  It would be great to see where they are and that more events like this can take 
place all over the District.  Await the Target and Actual figures.  

 

 » CDP
CW2.4

d 

Increase the number of 
tenants engaged who are 

under 30 years old, including 
all consultation events, 
scrutiny panels and 
performance management 
activity. Baselines to be 
confirmed  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 5 
 

Actual: the new officer will establish the 
baseline and prioritise getting younger 
tenants involved 

 

 
Our new Tenant Engagement Officer 
will be prioritising this and establishing 

baselines.  The majority of involved 
tenants are over 60, this is usual as 
retired people have the time and 
experience to be involved.  We will be 
liaising with our Youth Council to 
encourage younger people to become 
involved. 

Performance Members Comments: Comments as above CDPC2.4d 

 

CW2.5 Continue to invest and 
deliver the programme to 
modernise our Independent 
Living homes for older 
people. 

31/0
3/20
26 

Alison Fisk On Target 
 

 

14/07/2022: 
Quarter 1 

14/07/2022: Quarter 1: Work Started 
at Grange View and progressing well - 
estimated PC Oct. 

 » CDP
CW2.5 

Number of Independent 
Living Schemes modernised 

N/A Alison Fisk Target: 2 
 

Actual: 2 
 

June Two modernised during 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3349&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3349&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3350&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3126&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3322&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3322&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

EC3: Sustainable Construction and Retrofit: Work with partners to retrofit our council housing stock and 

other public sector buildings, and investing in the skills and capacity in the local economy so all buildings 
across the district can become energy efficient 

Code Action Required / Description Dea
dline 

Lead 
Officer 

Status Last Monitored Comments 

EC3.1 Agree a costed plan to 
retrofit all council homes as 
necessary and begin the first 

phase of delivery to realise 
optimum emission reductions 
and achieve an average 
Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) rating C 
across all council homes by 
2030. 

31/0
3/20
24 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

29/06/2022: 
Quarter 1 

26/08/2022:  Works now commenced 
on site. Some supply chain and 
inflationary issues identified, and 

being monitored and reported to core 
group  

Performance Members Comments: In light of the issues identified although this looks set to be on target, it would be too early to really know if this can be 

realistically achieved.  
 

 » EC3.
1.1 

Agree an investment plan to 
retrofit council homes 

31/0
3/20
23 

Joe 
Gordon 

Completed 
 

 

N/A 22/08/22: For Wave 1 properties, 
surveys received have highlighted 
some areas where additional works 
may be required (such as PV Heating).  
All reports needed before impact of 
those additional works can be costed 
accurately.  General increase in 

contracting and materials costs are 
being monitored and will be reviewed 
also on receipt of all reports.  

 » CDP
EC3.1 

Number of homes retrofitted 
each year (Average 470 / 
year) 

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target: 470 
 

Actual:  
 

 
22/08/22: Survey work nearing 
completion to provide reports 
supporting the definition of works 
required at the 187 Wave 1 bid 
programme. 
Although reports have been delayed it 

is still expected to deliver in target. 
Works also underway to develop a 
Wave 2 bid which is also dependant on 
bringing costs and delivery up to date 
based on Wave 1 performance. 

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3101&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3660&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3660&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3326&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3326&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

 » CDP
EC3.1(
C) 

Tonnes of carbon saved 
through council home retrofit 
i) cumulative since April 

2019, ii) in previous quarter  

N/A Helen 
Scullard 

Target:  
 

Actual:  
 

 
We do not have pre- and post-retrofit 
emission information to make this 
comparison 

EC3.3 Develop partnerships, 
provide advice, and support 
local action to help private 
home owners and businesses 
meet the retrofit challenge 
(CN2030 BE2, BE7 and BE8)  

31/0
3/20
23 

Rachel 
Brain 

On Target 
 

 

06/07/2022: 
Quarter 1 

06/07/2022: Quarter 1: Warm and 
Well and Innovate to Renovate 
partnerships are operating to deliver 
and develop services to households 
across the county. At the moment the 
business service provision remains 
with third sector and this is being held 
as a watchpoint for CLG by the 

countywide coordination effort. 

 » EC3.
3.1 

Annual reporting on capacity 
to service the district’s 
businesses and homes with 
support for retrofit. Baseline 
drawn from the first annual 
report due Feb 2022. 

31/0
3/20
22 

Rachel 
Brain 

On Target 
 

 

N/A 06/07/2022: The capacity at the 
council has increased by 1.75 fte 
under Innovate to Renovate funds. 

 » EC3.
3.2 

Establish a working group to 
consider Retrofit Centre for 
Excellence and establish 
aims, objectives and 
identified projects (working 
group in place Summer 
2022, work plan identified by 
Jan 2023). 

30/0
1/20
23 

Rachel 
Brain 

On Target 
 

 

N/A 18/07/2022: As part of an assurance 
review process on all thing retrofit for 
SDC in partnership with Cotswold 
District Council. Local Partnerships 
have run group and individual 
interviews with officers. members and 
SLT. A full report following further 
research is expected In September to 
provide recommendations for 
progression. 

 » CDP
EC3.3 

Number of successful 
projects and schemes in the 
district to help private home 
owners and businesses meet 
the retrofit challenge  

N/A Rachel 
Brain 

Target:  
 

Actual:  
 

  

 » CDP

EC3.3a
(C) 

Number of enquiries to Warm 

& Well Advice line 

N/A Maria 

Hickman 
Target: 100 

 

Actual: 464 
 

June 464 enquiries, as the cost of living 

crisis rises we are seeing more 
enquiries for help 

Performance Members Comments: It is great to see the scheme being used and there are more enquiries coming in.  Its appreciated that there may be a higher 
demand in the coming months.   
 

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3344&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3344&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3344&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3103&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3663&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3663&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3664&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan_activity.asp%3fid=3664&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3327&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3327&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3328&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


Housing Committee   Agenda Item 10a 
13 September 2022          Appendix B    

 » CDP
EC3.3b
(C) 

Number of measures 
installed through Warm & 
Well Scheme 

N/A Maria 
Hickman 

Target: 18 
 

Actual: 11 
 

June ii measures installed this quarter, 
which is slightly lower then expected 
due to changes to ECO 4 and the start 

of new funding streams through the 
sustainable warmth bids 

Performance Members Comments: Comment as above CDPEC3.3b(C)  

EC6: Renewable energy: Increase the proportion of energy generated by renewable sources in the district 
and work on decarbonizing existing networks. 

Code Action Required / Description Dea
dline 

Lead 
Officer 

Status Last Monitored Comments 

EC6.4 Deliver key low carbon 
demonstrator projects, 
including a project for 7 
homes in Draycott, Cam. 

31/0
3/20
23 

Helen 
Scullard 

On Target 
 

 

29/06/2022: 
Quarter 1 

26/08/2022 tenders are being 
prepared to tender for this with the 
aim of starting on site in January 2023 

 

 
 P

age 133

A
genda Item

 10a
A

ppendix B

file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/pi/pi.asp%3fid=3329&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=
file:///C:/PMF_Live/actionplan/actionplan.asp%3fid=3117&read=true&highlightText=&highlightSection=


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fo
r 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
&

 o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
 le

ve
l e

xe
cu

ti
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

  
 Headline - metrics  Performance Units   (RAG) status 

against plan  

Commentary – what’s happening? Why? And what we are going to do about it? 

La
gg

in
g 

 

(o
u

tp
u

ts
/o

u

tc
o

m
es

 

The Delivery Plan - Performance monitoring framework KPIs 

EC3.1 Agree costs plan to retrofit all council homes as necessary and 

begin the 1st phase of delivery to realize optimum emission reductions 

and achieve an average Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) rating C 

across al council homes by 2030. 

   Focus is currently on Wave One. Dramatic materials costs increases and contractor 

technician/ project team candidate  availability / affordability and a prudent/ cautious/ 

conservative risk managing approach to means that whilst some of the impact has 

been mitigated it is forecasted that the number of units retrofitted in 2020 season will 

80% of that planned (circa 376 against target of 470). 

 Sub headline - metrics 

Le
ad

in
g 

(i
n

p
u

ts
/ 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
) 

1. Creating and sustaining a project management team and a project 

management system to do 

   Still recruiting. Carbon reduction and Sustainability role - 1 unsuitable applicant for 

role. Considering alternative – a development opportunity for internal SDC resource. 2 

technical/ project management offircers – engaged staff agency.  

Proposed Root cause – salarly too low. 

Corrective action – sharing resource with others, develop internal resource 

2. Financials inc funding (inputs)    Finance all in place but concern that externally driven materials and labour cost 

increases could outpace planned budget without additional grant funding.   

3. Contractors     In year 2 or 3 year contract with option for 2 more years. Performance is ‘adequate’. 

They are suffering with same staffing, costs and materials issues.  

4. External Project Context Risk/ Opportunity/ Critical Path Tracking - 

short/ medium term (SWOT - Threats/ Opportunities) 

    

5. Internal Project risk/ critical path tracking (SWOT - Strengths/ 

Weaknesses) 

    

6. Tenant engagement programme     TBC 

La
gg

in
g 

 (
o

u
tp

u
ts

/o
u

tc
o

m
es

 

1. Retrofit project activity measure - performance against 470 units 

per year plan  

376 (Est)  Housing 

Units pa 

 Est 376 of units refrofitted for 2022 season is 20% lower than target. Root cause – 

materials and technology cost increases circa 40%  having to pay more for less. 

Technician cost increases and BREXIT driven poor availability. Concern about adequacy 

of capital funding for project costs in current climate.   

Corrective action –tech/ materials already bought in bulk (seizing procurement 

economies of scale) in advance anticipating cost increases and storing at depot or 

bonded warehouse. This has partially mitigated.  Plan to further mitigate through 

filling gaps with grant funding. Hope is that targeted EU visa regime for technicians 

being may ease though technicians can command same/ similar salaries in EU now.  

 

2. In use effectiveness measure  - before and after energy/ carbon  SAP rating 

(before/ 

TBD Monitoring under BIES grant pilot schemes continuing/ work in progress. Too early for 

results. Some lessons learnt from Hamfallow project where it was discovered that data 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 10c

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 10c



emissions assessments (SAP - energy efficiency) against plan after) transmitters were not located correctly resulting in intermittent/ interrupted data 

uploads.  
2.2. Normalized planned/ designed / modelled % carbon savings and 

£savings against baseline (on sample basis) 

 kgCO2epa 

per unit/ £ 

savings pa 

TBD 

2.3. actual (real world % carbon savings and £savings (accounts for 

weather and occupant behavior) 

 kgCO2epa 

per unit/ £ 

savings pa 

TBD 

2.4. deviance between 2.2 and 2.3 to date   +/- %  TBD 

3. Carbon savings measure - total carbon savings against baseline in 

(tCO2e pa) 

 tco2e pa 

against 

baseline  

TBD 

4. Engagement measure   TBC TBD TBD 

4.1 % uptake of tenants of retrofit offer   % take up 

against 

offered 

TBD TBD 

4.2 Success rate of 'in use' behavioral measures  TBC TBD TBD 

     

Fo
r 

R
et

ro
fi

t 
T&

F 
G

rp
 a

n
d

 O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 D

el
iv

er
y 

te
am

 p
la

n
n

in
g,

 im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
, m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
an

d
 

re
vi

ew
  

Le
ad

in
g 

(i
n

p
u

ts
/ 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
) 

Project stages/ workstreams metrics     

1. Creation of project management team and a system to do -     

1.1.  1 x Carbon retro fit engagement officer to engage and liaise with 

tenants inc explanation if benefits in plain in non tech language, 

tenant to tenant conversations (links with Tenant Empowerment T&F 

group work) 

   Still recruiting. Carbon reduction and Sustainability role (Carbon retro fit engagement 

officer) –  

1 unsuitable applicant for role.  

2 technical/ project management officers – open vacancies 

Probable Root cause – salary offer too low/ not competitive in current market 

Planned corrective action -- a development opportunity for internal SDC resource. 

Sharing resource. Engaged staff agency. 

1.2   2 x Project management officers    

1.3  1 x Energy assessors - to train up for before and after assessment 

(checking/ quantifying success) 

 TBD TBD TBD 

1.4  Best practice project management system inc  single source of 

information for project management and reporting,  embedding 

Prince2 process based project manager standards in project.   (ref 

https://www.prince2.com/uk/what-is-prince2) 

   Project management system in place  

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 10c

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 10c



2. Finance       

2.1. planned borrowing facilities based on draw down as we needed so 

as not to pay interest too early. 

    

2.2 monitoring additional sources of central government or other 

funding for burden/ risk sharing and extension of ambition 

    

3. Contractors/ Suppliers     

3.1.  Prospective/ selected -  Retrofit contractor (a key roles defined as 

programme assessors, coordinators, designer and advisors) need to 

have PAS 2045 'Retrofitting dwellings for improved energy efficiency' 

accreditation. 

 N/A 

currently  

 NB this section is triggered when tender process is planned / is in planning. Noted that 

we are in year 2 or 3 year of a contract with option for 2 more years. Current 

performance is ‘adequate’ under the circumstances. Contractor is suffering with same 

staffing, costs and materials issues.  

3.2  Prospective/ selected - technology Original Equipment 

Manufacturer (OEM) certification  requirements. 

 N/A 

currently 

 

3.2  Progress of Tendering/ and selection process through portal (2-3 

month process).   

 N/A 

currently  

N/A 

currently 

 

3.4. Procurement -Strategic sourcing KPIs (sections 9-13 inc VFM, 

Social Value, Sustainable Procurement, Supporting Local Economy and 

Ethical Procurement of - Ref - 

https://www.stroud.gov.uk/media/1070402/final-sdc-procurement-

strategy-2019.pdf0 

 N/A 

currently  

N/A 

currently 

 

4. .  Project Context Risk/ Opportunity/ Critical Path Tracking - 

Horizon and short/ medium term tracking (SWOT - Threats/ 

Opportunities) 

    

4.1. Gathering and assessment of Market Intelligence on -  1. materials 

(materials availability)  2.  Labour - increased demand and reduced 

supply of trained/ qualified  technicians, 3. labour cost increases - 4. 

Heat pumps equipment supply/ distribution. (lists may/ should alter) 

   Active gathering and assessment of Market Intelligence continues and appears 

effective. NB detected that Materials and technology cost increases circa 40%  having 

to pay more for less. Technician cost increases. BREXIT driven – reduced technician 

availability.  

4.2 Progress of project risk mitigation/ elimination actions    Corrective action – already bought in bulk (economies of scale) in advance anticipating 

cost increases an storing at depot or bonded warehouse. This has partially mitigated.  

Plan to further mitigate through filling gaps with grant funding. Hope is that targeted 

EU visa regime for technicians being may ease though technicians can commend 

same/ similar salaries in EU now. 

4.3  Tracking Evolution of the SAP standard - e.g.  AI learning 

technology 

   No changes 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 10c

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 10c



5. Project risk/ critical path tracking (SWOT - Strengths/ Weaknesses) 

(not covered in SDC owned and controlled aspects of 1, 2 and 3 

above) 

    

5.1 Technology selection inc reliability, reparability and warrantee 

period - contractor and manufacturer 

   Some lessons learnt from Hamfallow project where it was discovered that data 

transmitters were not located correctly resulting in intermittent/ interupted data 

uploads. 

5.2. SDC acceptance - before and after warrantee - development - 

skilled SDC maintenance 'wise buyer' capability at acceptance/ 

handover (before end of warranted) 

   Renewables added to SDC in house maintenance team training/ competency 

programme. Manufacturer training sessions  

5.2.1  SDC Skills for long term maintenance -  ID and procure training 

for own engineers and implement apprenticeship programme  (NB  1 

only currently 2 more coming). 

   

5.3 Pilot Study lessons learnt implementation    See Hamfallow lessons learnt 

6. Tenant / Occupant engagement programme      

6.1 Best professional practice innovation diffusion/ behavior change 

and engagement methods/ capability.   

 TBC TBD  

6.2 Implementation of Best professional practice innovation diffusion/ 

behavior change and engagement methods   

 TBC TBD  

 

 

 

 

Housing Committee 
13 September 2022

Agenda Item 10c

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 10c



Housing Committee  Agenda Item 11 
13 September 2022 

   

 STROUD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

DRAFT HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 

13 SEPTEMBER 2022 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
 

Date of 
meeting Matter to be considered Notes 

(e.g Lead Member/Officer) 

The Health and Wellbeing and Physical 
Activity Action Plan 

Physical activity & Health 
Development Manager/ 
Community Health and 

Wellbeing Manager 

Rents and Service Charges Strategy Head of Housing Services, 
Principal Accountant 

18.10.2022 
(Extraordinary) 

Revised HRA Delivery Plan Update Head of Housing Services 

Budget Monitoring Q2 Principal Accountant 

Housing Committee Estimates and – 
Revised 2022/23 and Original 2023/24, and 
HRA Medium Term Financial Plan 

Principal Accountant 06.12.2022 
(Budget) 

Member/Officer Reports 
a) Performance Monitoring Q2 
b) Tenant Representatives 

Lead Member/Officer 

Older Persons Strategy 2023-26 Service Delivery Manager 
(Independent Living) 

Tenant Handbook Update  Housing Manager 

Results from the Survey of Tenants & 
Residents (STAR) survey  Housing Manager 

Anti Social Behaviour Policy Head of Community 
Services 

31.01.2023 

Member/Officer Reports 
a) Tenant Representatives Lead Member/Officer 

Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund  Head of Housing Services 

Budget Monitoring Q3 Principal Accountant 28.03.2023 
Member/Officer Reports 
a) Performance Monitoring Q3 
b) Tenant Representatives 

Lead Member/Officer 

Items to be considered at a future meeting 
• Tenancy Agreement (part of the de-pooling project) (2023) 
• Empty properties delivery plan 
 
Future Information Sheets: 
• Updated Local Plan Affordable Housing Policies (2022)– Head of Strategic Housing Services 

(interim) 
• Review of the Gloucestershire private sector housing survey 2022 – Housing Renewal Manager 
• Social Housing Regulation Bill - Head of Housing Services 

Page 139

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6a Update on Housing Management System Procurement
	7 Play Area Consultation and Development Action Plan Recommendations
	There are financial implications associated with this report for both the General Fund and HRA. Any spend based on the recommendations for investment (3.1) must be managed within the existing funding resources from COMF. Repairs outlined in 3.2.1 will need to be funded from existing SDC budget.
	As the County Council are providing a grant, SDC must comply with any terms imposed as a condition of the funding and legal advice should be sought on those terms.
	There are no significant implications within this category.
	Item 7 - Appendix A – Stroud District Council Play Framework – August 2022
	Item 7 - Appendix B Stroud District Council Play Area Consultation Report - July 2022
	Item 7 - Appendix C – Play Area Community Consultation Visits
	Item 7 - Appendix D – Images of recommended investment play areas
	Item 7 - Appendix E - Equality Impact Assessment

	8 BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2022/23 QUARTER 1
	This report is of a financial nature, reporting on previous financial activities and expected forecasts. Potential financial pressures are detailed in the report.

	10a Performance Monitoring Q1
	Item 10a - Appendix A - Housing Priority Indicators
	Item 10a - Appendix B - Housing Performance Monitoring report - August 2022 (002)

	10c Retrofit / Carbon Reduction Task and Finish Group
	11 Work Programme

